
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded. 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Stuart Robinson 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74360 
 

 
 

 
Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 24 74707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(YORKSHIRE & THE HUMBER) 

 

 
Meeting to be held in  on 

Friday, 16th November, 2012 at 10.30 am 
(Pre-Meeting will be held at 10.00am for all Board Members) 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

S Ali - Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

J Bromby - North East Lincolnshire 
Council 

D Brown - Hull City Council 

J Clark - North Yorkshire County 
Council 

P Elliott - North Lincolnshire Council 

C Funnell - City of York Council 

M Gibbons - Bradford Metropolitan 
Council 

R Goldthorpe - Calderdale Council 

B Hall - East Riding of Yorkshire 
Council 

J Illingworth (Chair) - Leeds City Council 

T Revill - Doncaster Metropolitan 
District Council 

B Rhodes - Wakefield Council 

M Rooney - Sheffield City Council 

L Smaje - Kirklees County Council 

J Worton - Barnsley Council 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-18 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  Also to declare 
any other significant interests which the Member 
wishes to declare in the public interest, in 
accordance with paragraphs 19 -20 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
following meetings: 
 

• 24th July 2012 
• 19th December 2011 
• 4th October 2011 
• 29th September 2011 
• 22nd September 2011 

 
(Copies attached) 
 

1 - 34 



 

 
D 

7   
 

  REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART 
SERVICES IN ENGLAND: IMPLEMENTATION 
 
To consider a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development which provides an update 
on the implementation phase of the review of 
Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services in England.  
 
(Report attached) 
 
 

35 - 
78 

8   
 

  REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART 
SERVICES IN ENGLAND: REFERRAL TO THE 
SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH - DRAFT 
REPORT 
 
To consider a draft report by the Head of Scrutiny 
and Member Development which provides support 
for a referral to the Secretary of State for Health of 
the decision of the Joint Committee of Primary 
Care Trusts (JCPCT)  decision in relation to the 
review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in 
England and the reconfiguration of designated 
surgical centres. 
 
(Cover report attached main report to follow) 
 
 

79 - 
86 

 
 



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

��������	
�����������	�����������������������������������
������������

�
�����	����������
��������

�
���������
�

�
	������������	�������	�����������

� �
	������������	������������� ���������
!
		�����"���#����"�$�"�����������%������
&�'�������(��������	��)����*�+���

�
�

  � 
!"#��"#$%��
�

�������������������������������	��������	����	������	�����	��������	����
���������	��,$�	
���-.�������/0�
�

•� �
������	�����)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
���,)&%&/��

•� !���������&�����	�����������������������	��%������1���������	��
���
��	#����������,1������2344/�

•� ���#�����������$���5��
	��������
��	�5�43��
�#�2342�

•� )�����������������������#��
	����

•� '���������������	6���	��	�������������������������'#���%����������
������������	�,(������/��7������5�'������������	����	��	�� 8�����
��	������������#���������������	�9�		��#�,!���
��#�2342/�

•� ����������������	����
	�������	��

•� '��������	��"���	��8�2�����	����������������������	���
��������	������������
���������	��������
�����#������	����	��	��
 8�������	���,���������#�������	�9�		��#/�

�
 &� �#'(!)!"*+,%�+-��,"#)#%"��
�

����+���#������������������	����	��������
�����	���������������	#������

	����������	���������������%������������������+��"�������������		:
���
	���#��	������������+���#��������	����	����������	�+���
�
&����������	���������������	�����	������+�
�

 .� 	/+(+0*#%�-+)�	1%#,'#�!,2��+"*-*'!"*+,�+-��31%"*"3"#%��
�

"��������������	���������
��������	�����������
	�������������#��$�
7���	���'�7�����������'������$�'	�#��	����;��	+�
�

"���	��	��������������	���
�����
����������������	������0�

•� ��������$���5������+�"����	���#�������	��	��������
�����
����������+�
$����7���	���

•� ������������
	����5�����+�"		�$�"������������	��	��������
�����
������
����+�'
���7���������

•� ;����������
	����5�����+�(�		������������	��	��������
�����
������
����+�����#�'�����

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

�
 4� �#5*#6�+-��7*(2)#,8%��+,0#,*"!(��#!)"��#)5*'#%�*,��,0(!,2���#5*%#2�

�#)$%�+-��#-#)#,'#��
�

&���%���������
��	#��	��$��������������	���	����������������������
��
�����������������	��������	�$�#�2342��	�������
���<
�	�����	�����	�
����	���	��������	��
	���6����������������	���������	�������#����	������
�	��������#����������	�����������������������������	��%������1��������
�	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/+���
�
&��������	������������	�����������������������������	��%������
1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/�������������0��
�

•� )��������#��
	����5�����+���	�����	�������������	������+�)����$
�����	�
,���������+�����	�����������������������������	��%������1���������	��
���
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����//+���

•� ����� ����)�	��	�������
	����5�����+�����#� �������������	������+�9����
;���	��

•� �������������#��
	����5�����+�$����'	�#��������	������+���	���
	������
�
���������������������������	������������������������&�������'�����	������
������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������
%
����/�������
����	���������������	�������������	6���	��	�����
%���������������	� 	���	��,�	��
��	���������	���
����	����	���	���
�
���
�����	����
���������	����/��	������	��	���������������	�
�����	+���
%����������������������	���	�
�����	��������������������������������
�������	������	��#�������	����������	�����#���������������	�����	��
�������	����	����
��������������	��%1�����#���������	������	��	�
	��	�������+�
�
$���������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(��������
�	������%
����/�����������	�����������������&�������'�����	��������
������������������������	�����	�������������	���	��
�����	��������	���
���
�����������������������������	����	�������������������+���
�
$��������	��������������������&�������'�����	����	�������������
����������	��������
���	#�������	������	���	��+�
�
&��	���������8�����������
	�������;���	��	����
	��������������
�	����
��	��������������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������
,(���������	������%
����/+��&���������������
�������	���������������
�
	������$
�����	��������������������������	����������+�
�
����
����9��
,�/� &���������	������	������	�����	������������	����������&�������

'�����	������	���+�
,�/� &������������������	�����������������������������	��%������

1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/��	������
�������������	����������6��������������
���	�������������&�������
'�����	������������+�

Page 2



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

�
�

 :� �#5*#6�+-��7*(2)#,8%��+,0#,*"!(��#!)"��#)5*'#%�*,��,0(!,2��;*,!(�
�#'*%*+,��

�
&���������������%���������
��	#��	��$��������������	���	���
������
��	������	������	���������������������	��#�������	�������������������#�
�����&�
����,����&/��������	�������
�
������	���
����	����������	6��
�	��	��������������
���������	������	������������	�������	���
����	+�
�
&�������������	��������������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#�
���������,(���������	������%
����/������������
������������������#�����
��	������������������������������	
������������������������������
	�������
�������	����������������	��������	���	��
��	�0�
�

•� �:�����	�����������=�

•� ��������=�

•� ��
����	���	���#=�

•� >
�	���������
��=�

•� &�������	�������������������=�

•� ������������%��

•� &����������	��������	������������	������	��=�

•�  ������������	��	�������������	������=�

•� "�
����������	��	��������������������=����

•� >�����������������������(���������	������%
�����
�
&������������������������������������������
��#��8���������#�������	��
%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/������
�	#��
�
�������������������������	���	��
����������	������������	6����������
�
���������	�������)������
�������������������	����#�	���������������	�
�����������	��	�����������������(���������	������%
����+�
�
&�������������������������������������������	��	�?��
�#�2342����������&�����
��������	�
�����	�1���	�������������	����	��	�����������	���	���
�	��	�����������	������������#����������	���
���������	����0�
�

•� ����������
�	�&#	��%���������%��!
	����	�&�
���

•� "�����%�#��������	6��%��������%��!
	����	�&�
����

•� �����	������������	6��%��������%��!
	����	�&�
���

•� @	�������#�%������������������%��!
	����	�&�
���

•� �
������	�@	�������#�%���������%��!
	����	�&�
���

•� 7�����1��	���������%�����������������	��%��!
	����	�&�
���

•� 7
#6���	����+�&����6��%��!
	����	�&�
���
�
&�������������������	:$���	���
��	�����������������	����������������
����	��������	��#�����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#�
���������,(���������	������%
����/+�
�
"���	������	�����������������A���������������������	��������	��������������
����	�����	��	������������	�����������	���	���������������	��%������

Page 3



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/��	�����
�	��������	�����������&6��������	+��
&��������������������������	��������	����
��	���
����������������	��
�	���������	����������	������0�
�

•�  ��������������	�������=�

•� �������	6��%������
����#�!
	���	�������	���	������	���������	�������=�

•� )�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
����������	�������=��	����

•� ��	�������������������#������&�
����,����&/��������	�������+�
�
 ��������������	�������0�
�

&��������	���������	��������������	�����	��	����	������������������	��
%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/+�
�

•� ��
����"	�����5�$����������������	������
���#�

•� �
	������)����$
�����	�5� 8��
�����$���������%�������	��;������	��
,)��������#��
	���/�

�
��
����"	�����$���������������������	��������	����������������	��	����
������	
�������$�����������������	�������������������	������������������+��
������������������������$��������	������	����������	���������������������
��
<
����	�������
������	���������������
����	����������
���������
����&6��������	+��"�	
�������������������
�����	��
��	�����������	��
�������������������������0�

•� ���
������������������������	�������
����	���
	��)�����,4?�
�����	������������2��
������������������#/��	�����	�������	�������	��
���	��
������	��#��	����������������������������+�

•� �	���	����
	�����������6��������#���������������	��
����������
?33��
������������
��������#������	���������
����	��
�������
�����
������������������������+��

•� ���������������������������������������	���������(���������	������
%
������
���	����������������������	����	���������	��������
�������
��	�������)�������
�����������������������������	�������	��
��	��
)�������������	������	��)	�	+�

•� &�������&��������
�������������	��
����2-B��������	�������
(���������	������%
������
���������������������+��&�������
����	�
�
������������������������
���*
��������������<
�����	����
	��������
������	��
����������?33��
������������
��������#���+��%��������������

	����������������	����������������
������2-B������	����
�����
���
����	��	�A�����������������	��������+�

•� &����:�����	�����������������	�������	����������������	��
���
	������������
������������������������	������������	��<
����#��������
���������������
���������	����+�&����������	���	����������������	���
����������
���������	�������)������
���	�����
����	��	�����������������
�	���
����	��������������������������������������
����	���(��������
�	������%
����+�

•� �	���	���������������	�����������$ ����
	����������	�����	�
���<
����#������������	���������&��������	+�

�

Page 4



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

1	����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(��������
�	������%
����/���������������	����$��"	�������������	����
��	�������
�����	�+���
�
	������)����$
�����	��)��������#��
	���6�� 8��
�����$���������%������
�	��;������	���������������������	�+������������������������
	��������	��#��
�
	������$
�����	����������
��#����	���������������	��%������1��������
�	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/��	�����������������
����������	��������	��
	������	��	��������������6������������+�
�
"�	
�������������������
�����	��
��	�����������	���������������������������0�
�

•� �	���	���������������&�����������������<
����#��	��������������
��	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/�
�
������	��#�����#��	���������������������	�����������������������	��
�������������	�����������������
������	���	���
�����������������
������+�

•� &�����	�����������������	������
������	�����������������������	��
%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/��	��
��������	���	�������	��������	�����������������������	��
���������
����&6�������������
�����������	����������6�����+�

•� ���
�����
	����������	����������������������#�������	��%������
1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/������	��
���
������	��	��	�����
����������������������������������	��������	��	��
��������+��

•� �������
����	������	�������������C<
����#6��������	���������	��
�	��
��������	��	

��#�������������������	��
�����
������<
����#���
����������������������)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
���,)&%&/+�

•� &���������#���)&%&��������������	��
�����	�������?33������
����
�����		
��
	������?��
���	�����+�

•� ���
�����
	�����	�����	�#���������	:����	���	�������������#�
�	������	����������#���<
�������#�������	��%������1���������	��
���
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/����������	�����	�
���������#���������&+�

•� 7�	������	���	����������������	�������������
���������	�������)�����
�
���	�����
����	��	����������������+��'�����������
������������������
�����������������
����	���(���������	������%
����+�

�
1	����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(��������
�	������%
����/���������������	�����
	������$
�����	���������	�
���	������
�����	���	���	��	
����	����
��	�������������������	����������+�
�
�������	6��%������
����#�!
	���	�������	���	������	���������	�������0�
�

&��������	���������	��������������	�����	��	����	������������������	��
%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/+�
�

•� 9���	�;������	4�,�������	��&�
����/�5��������	6��%������
����#�!
	���

•� )������	�5�����	���

•� �	�"�	���5�����	���	��&�
��������������	6��%������
����#�!
	��

���������������������������������������� ����
4
���������������������
���	����)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
���

Page 5



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

•� ������;����5�����	���

•� 7�#	����������5�����	���

•� 9�������#�������5���
����	��	����������������	���
�
&�������	��A������	���������	�����������	����������	��%������1���������	��
���
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/������������
	��#���
�����������������	���	���������	����������&6��������	��	����������������
�����	�+���
�
"��
����#����������
����������������	������
�����������������	��������
�����0�
�

•� &�����������	������
�������������������������������5��+�+��������
��������
���������	����+�

•� &����	���	����
	����������&6��������	���������#�����	����	��
�����	���������(���������	������%
���������	�����	����������������
���
��
	<
����	������#���#��������
���������	�������)����+���	���	���������
�������������
�������	��	�����������
���������������	��	�����
��	��
��������	������������������������#�����������������(���������	������
%
����+�

•� &�������&6��������	��
�������������������������������������	��	��
���������������(���������	������%
�����5��
��������	���������������
�����	���+�

•� �	���	�����������������
���	��������������	��
��	
�������?33�
�
������������
���������		
��5���
������	�������
���������	����

	�
����	������	�����	�����#������	�����������	����������	��������
 	���	������
�����
���������	���+�

•� �	���	��������������������	������	��������	�����	�����	�������
�������������C��	�����	�6��������	����	���������
	������������������������
�����������������	��������,�������������	������%���	����
��	/+�

•� �	���	������������		�����	�����	�����	�#�������������	:����	��
����������	���	������	��������������	��	�����������������(��������
�	������%
����+�

•� &���������	������:�����	����������������������	������	��
�����8��#���	������	���:��������������������	+�������������������������
�����	����������&6��������	�����������������	�������	�#�C���	����	�6�
�	��	������������
�������
	����	� 	���	�+�

•� �	���	��������	�������	�:�������������	��������	���������	��	�����
���������	����	��������
����#��	����������������	����������������������
��������	������	�����������
������	�����+�

•� �	��������	���C���������	���8�����	��6��������������������	�������	�
�������������������	��������������������������	������	���������
����&6��������	��
������������	��	����������������(���������	������
%
����+�

•� �������
	������������
���������	����#��������	������������������
��
����������	��	����������������������������#������������������������
�������	+��&���
������������������	6������������������#�������������	��
�	#������������������������
����������	��	������������������+�

•� &����������	��������#���
�������������	��	��������	
���������
����
������	��	�����������������������������������	����+�

Page 6



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

�
$�+�;������	��������������������	���	������������#����������������
�������	6��%������
����#�!
	���	��
���	������������	�����
��0�
�

•� "���������������������	6��%������
����#�!
	���$��;������	�����
����	�����	������������������������4D��
��������	�����������������	�
�
��	���������������
������	�
�����	�,$�����2344�5��
�#�2344/+��"��
�
����$�+�;������	��������������������	#����������
����	���	���	��
��������#�����	����	�������������������������	+�

•� "������������������ �����	�������� 	���	�������	���	��������
����&6��������	�������������������������	������	��������������������
����������		�	�����	�������5��+�+������������������������������������������
������	�������
����	�5���
��������	����������	
��������	�����
����
	����	������������8�������������	����	������������	��������������������	�
������������	����������+�

•� &�������&6��������	�����	�������������������������
����	�
��*����	�����(���������	������%
������	����������� ���+�

•�  8������������	����������	���������	��������,�+�+����������
����	��/��
�
���	������������	���	�����
������������	����������+��&�������������
����#�
������	�����	��	������	���������
������:�����	�������������	������
������	��������	���������������������+�

•� ���	�����
���������������������������#�����
�����<
����#�������
�����%����	�����#+��%�����������9�		��#�������,���	�������������������
C<
����#6������/�����	������
����	���������������	�������������
���
����������������
���	�����	�����
����+�

•� &�������&6��������	�����	�����������������
������	�����
	��	�����
���������������	�#�����
	�������	�	����������#������������	��	������
����������������+�

•� �	���	����������������	�����(���������	��%
���������	����	#�
���
�����)����6��
�������
	�����������	��
����E33�333����	��
��������	��
���	�����	��
������	���������	�����	��������	�������������������&6��
������	:����	��������+�

�
$�+�;������	���������������	���������	����8�����	���,�	������������	���
�������#��������������������������
���	����)�����&�����	��%���������%��
&�
��/�������	���	���C���	�:��	�6��
���������	����,�������������9����	������
%�������������	�)����/�����������������	���	��������������������	6��%�������
�����	��5���������������	�������#����������,�	��
��	�������������	�������	��#�
��������/�	�����	��������+��$�+�;������	����������������	��������������	���

	�������:�����	����������������+�
�
$���������������	������������������������	������
�������	
�������
���
�������������	���	����������	����	��
��	�0�

•� ��������������������������!�����	�%�������������������	������
�����	��������	��#���������=�

•� &����������������	�����	����	���	��������������������������#�����
����&=�

•� &���������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������
,(���������	������%
����/�������	��	��������	������������������#���

Page 7



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

����8�����	������������
�������������&��������	���	�����������	�����
�
���������������	+�

�
$�����������������#�����
����������	��	���������������������	����	��	��
 8�������	������������#���������������	�9�		��#��������	���������	6��
�	��	�������������������������'#���%����������������������	�,(������/��
7������,!���
��#�2342/+��
�
1	����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(��������
�	������%
����/���������������	����������	�����	��	�������������	����
��	��
�����������	���	��������������	����������+�
��
)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
����������	�������0�
�

&��������	���������	��������������	�����	��	����	������������������	��
%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(���������	������%
����/+�
�

•� �����#�%
	����,������	���7�	�����$�	�������������	F����������/�5�
)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
����

•� 9����$��	���,�������������
	�����	�/�5�)�����&�����	��%��������
�%��&�
���

•� ���9���� 	�����2�,�	�
���	���	�"�
����	��	�����%������������/�5�
)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
���

•� ��� ��	� &���	G� ,�	�
���	�� ����������/� 5� )����� &�����	��
%���������%��&�
����

•� ���$������������,���@��	�
���	�/�5�)�����&�����	��%���������%��
&�
����

•� ��� ���	� ������� ,�	�
���	�� ��	�������/� 5� )����� &�����	��
%���������%��&�
�����

�
&��������	�����
���������������������	������
����0�
�

•� &���������	����	��������8����	��(���������	��%
��������	�����
	�������	�������������������	�����	�����������������	����������������
������������������#���	����+��

•� H
��������
	����������������������������#���	�����	�)�����
�
��������<
������������������������������	��	�������,�����������
�����	������	��)������/+��

•� '���������������������������	��������	������������������������
���	����	��,�	������������������/��	������	���,�	��������������	�������/+�

•� &����	����������������������	�)�����&�����	��%���������%��&�
���
,)&%&/���������������������������
������������������	��
��	�����	�����
����	�	�����������������������+�

•� &���
���������9�		��#������������C��8#6������������<
����#��	������
������	����������#��	��������	���	��
�������������	��������+�

•� �	���	����
	���	�	�����	������	��������	����������������������	�
�����������
������������+�

���������������������������������������� ����
2
���
	����$���������������������	��	�������������"�������	�,���"/�
G
��%	���#���������#����������������	��	�������������"�������	�,���"/�

Page 8



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

•� 1	��������������������������&6��������	����	�����������������
�
��������	�����	�#����	����	��
	����	� 	���	��,�+�+�	�����������	6��
%�������������	�������
�����	���������������������������������/+�

•� �	���	���������������������	�����
�������������������������	�
���������#��������������	��	�������������"�������	�,���"/�����	��
���	��
��#������������#���������&+�

•� ���	�����	����������,������	���#��	����	�	�����#/�����������&6��
������	�������������������&��	���������������������#� ������+�

•� &��������������������&�������	�	�����������	������������������
�	��	����������@	������@/��	�)�����5��	��
��	�����
�����
	���������#��	��
���8������#��
��	�������,��	���/�������+���������������������������������#������
����������
��A�������������@������
������(���������	������%
����+��
&�����	��
�	���#�����������	�����	���������	����������������&��	�����
����������������#� ������+�

•� &����������
�������������������������#���������	��������	�����
�������#�������������������#�)&%&��	����������	�	������������������
�#�����&�
��+�

•� &���������	����������:�����	������������5��	�������
�������
�������	��	����������������$ ����
	�����+�

•� &������������������	�����������	��	��������	��	����������������+��

•� ���������
���������������	�	����������	�����	���������	����������
�����8��������	������	��������	+��&����:�����	�������������	������
�����������	��������#�������	�+�

•� &��������������������	����������	����	���������(���������	������
%
����������	��������������@��	��	�	�������������+��

•� ���
������������������C��
�6���������	���������	�����������8�	����+��
;���
���
����:�����	��������������������
	����������������	������
�����8�	������
�������������A���������+�

•� �	���	����
	������C<
����#6��������	������������������������������	��
�������	������������������������������#�)&%&+�

•� �	���	����
	�����������������������8��������������9�		��#�
��������	����	��+�����8��������������������������������
���������
�	��	��������������������	��	���������	��@9����������������������+�

•� �	���	�������������������������	������	����������#���������&�
�	���������������������	����������	����������������	�������	���+�

•� �	��������	�������	�	�������	�������������	�������+���	���	������
����
������������	��	������������
������������������������
	���������
�������#�����	�����	�)�����,�	�����	�����#��������:�����	�������	����/�
�
���������������������	�	�+�

•� &������"��������������������������������������	��	����
������
���
��������	��	��������*�	��#+�

•� &����	������	��	
���������
����	��	������������������������	��+��
�	���	�����������	���:���������������	������	��	
�������	���������������
	�����	��
��#��	�������+�

•� �	���	����
	��������	�������#������	��
	�������	��#���������&�
,������
����������	�������	�������#�!��	�����������	:$���	���
��	����
����/��	��������0�

�� &������
���#����	������	���������,	��	��������	�����
��*�������������#�������������	������
���������	���/+�

Page 9



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

�� &������
����2-B��������������	�������������������	��������
)������	��;�����������������	������������������	���������������	�
��	�����������
���������������������
	�������	������+�

•� �	���	�������������	�����	�����
��������	����������������������	���

	���������	���������	�C������6���������������	����	�������������
������+�

�
$�����������
����������������������	�����	���������	���������������
�����	�+��$����������������������	�����	��������������������������������
���������#������
����	�������	���������	���	������	������������&6��������	�
�
���	�����
����	��	�����������������������(���������	��%
�������������
�����	����#����	����������+��
�
1	����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������,(��������
�	������%
����/���������������	����������	�����	��	�������������	����
��	��
�����������	���	��������������	����������+�
�
&�����������*
�	������������	������
	����������8������#�40G3���
�
�
�
&��������	���������	��	����������8������#�2033��+��$������������
��������������
	������������	�,%
������#��
	���/��	����%����, ����'���	��
��(���������
	���/�������������������	���
����������	������	�����	��
�
	���������
����"���,'���������
	���/�����*�	������������	�+�
�
&�����	�������������������#������&�
����,����&/��������	�������0�
�

&���������������������#	�����������	������������������	���	����������
��������������	���
���	����
��	�������������������&��	������������	�
�����	�?��
�#�2342+�
�
&��������	���������	��������������	�����	��	��+�
��
•� ���������$�9�#�5���������������	�������������������#������&�
����
,����&/�

•� "	�#��
���,������ 8��
����/�5��%���
���(��������I������������

•� ��+�)������%�����	�,���
�#������/�5�������	���
����	�������������
�
����#�������	��7�
��

•� �����#�7�#���,����������������/�5�������	���
����	�����
���������

�
���������$�9�#��	������#��������������������	���	�����	�������������������
���
��
	��������
���	�������	������
������������
���	�������������#�����
�������	�������������������	��������������������	����������	�+����������
��	��	�����������������������	�����	��
��	�0�
�

���������������������������������������� ����
?��"����������������������������������	�	��7�
��,(���������	������%
����/��	������
����	���,(���������	������%
����/��������	�������	�������	�������������������#������
&�
����,����&/+�

�

Page 10



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

•� &���������������������������������������	����	���	���	������
(���������	������%
������������	���	�����#���������&+�

•� &�������&�������������������	����������������	�����������	��
������������������6�������+��	�������	��������������&��������������
������	��	��������	#��������������	�#���������������+�

•� �������������
��	���������#��
����������
�����������A��<
���#�
�������������������	� 	���	�+�

•� �	�������	����������������	������	���������
���	����	����������

	�����,������������������8�����	���18����������������	�������������
�	�
�������	����������������	��/+�

•� �	�������	���������������������	���������	�����#����������5�������
�
�����������	����������������������
���������	����+�

•� "	�
���	���������������&6�������	��������	�����	�����	�
����	��������#���������5��
�������
���������������	����	���	��#��������
������	
��������������	���
��������	������	��	�����������
����������
�������	���*
�����	�+�

•� &���
���������������	���
�����"������������������
	������
�
������	�
�����	��������������
	�+�

�
!
�������������	���������������������������	���	��������	����������������	��
����
������	��
���0�
�

•� ��������	�����������	�����������������������������#��
�������
��	������	�������
�����	��	��������������	��
��������#�������������
�����	��+�

•� &���	��������������������������	�����������#������������
���������,�8��
��	���
������������
���/������������������������	��6�
����+�

•� �	����������	��������%������	���	�������������	�������	��	������	��
�������������	������:�����	�����������+�

•� �	�������	������������	�9�		��#6�� 8�������	��������	������������
��������������������	�����
	������������	�������	��	������	����:���������
�����
�����������	��
��	�������!�����$�����	���	��$����	��#����������
�����	������������	�������	��	����+�

•� &��������������������������
����������	��	�������������������������

��������������A���������������	��������������&��	���
���	�����
�	�������+��&�������������������	6������������
���	���������#���
	����
234?����������������������
�����������������A����������+��

•� &�������&���������	��������������	
��������������������	��
���
�����
	����������������������+�

•� �	��������	������������	����������������	���#��������	���
���������,&��	����	����	�� 8������������$�����	��18#��	���	�
, �$1/��	�������8�&���������
����#/��������	��	���������#���
	���	������������5���������������
	����)����6����������	+���������
����������������������������"�����#�7�
���������	���������������
���������,"7���/��������������
��������JA43�#��������
������
��#�����
���	����	����������������������	������
���	��#���������	���
������������
,�	��
��	�����������/+�

•� ���������������������������������������
�����	���	��
��������������
�����
������	�
�����	���������	���������������������������	��

Page 11



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

�	���������#���������&�	�?��
�#�2342��
�����������
������	����	��
	��������	���	���#��������	�����������+�

•� �	����������������9�		��#������A���	��	����������	�������	��
���	��������	��<
����#��	��
	�������	��������	�������#������+�

•� �%��)	�	������������������������������	��������
�����������
���	���
����	���������������	��������#�������������#������������%������5�
������������	���
����	���������	���������	������0��

�� �
���������7���������	�����
�� ����	����	����
������	�������	���	������	���
�� ������#�	��������	����������	���������
�� �	�����	�#�������
���	���	������������������	���������

•� ���
�����
	����������	��*
�	�#��������������	�����	��	�����
	��
�#���������&+�

�
$���������������	�������������	��	��������������	������
�����	
�������
���
�����	��
��	�0�
�

•� &�������	������������
��������������+�

•� �	�
�����	�������$ ����
	�������	��������������	������	���	�
�����������+��������������������������������	������$ �������
	���
�������	����2?B��������
��������������	�(���������	������%
�����5�
���	������	��	�����������8�	����+��&������
�����
	���:�����	���
�������������������
����#�������	���	������������+�

•� &����	�:������
����	������#������������������
���������	���+�

•� ������#���
	������9�		��#�������,
�����������8#����<
����#/+�

•� &������	�����	��������	������
	���������	����	+�

•� ������#���
	��������������	����������������������������	��	��
�����������(���������	������%
����+�

•� H
��������
	������JA43�#���������������<
�������
������
��#�����
���	����	����������������������	������
���	��#���������	���
�����������+�

•� &��������������#��	��������	�������������	�)����������	���	��	�����
��������
�������
����+���

�
&����������������������������	���	���	��
���	��
��������	����������6��
����������	�������������������?��
�#�2342�������	���������	�����������
��������#������&�
������������	�������
�
������	���
����	����������	6��
�	��	��������������
���������	�������	������������	�������	���
����	��
��������������������������#������������%����������	��������	��	�����������
������������	�	�����	���	������	�������������������%�+����
�
!�������
��������������
���
	�����	��������	������������%������
�	����������������	�������%��������(���������	������%
����+�
�
�
����
����9��
,�/� &��������?��
�#�2342�������	���������	�������������������#������

&�
������������	�������
�
������	���
����	����������	6���	��	�����
���������
���������	�������	������������	�������	���
����	�����
�����������������������#������������%����������	��������	��	�����
������������������	�	�����	���	������	�������������������%�+�

�

Page 12



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	�������������������

�

,�/� &�������������	�����������	����	���������	���������
�����������#�
����������������	��%������1���������	�����
��	#����������
,(���������	������%
����/�������������������������������
���������
�����������������������#������������%�����+���

�
&�� �!"#�!,2��*$#�+-��#<"��##"*,0��
�

�	��������������������������������	#�������	����������6�����������������
��������#������������%�������	�����	��	
��������	#���������������������
��������������������������������	��	���
�
��������	�����������	��
�������������	�����	�����������+���
�
&�����������������	��������������	������������������	�����������
����	��	����	���	����
��	������������	�+�
�
�
�

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

��������	
�����������	�����������������������
�������������������������

�
����	�����������������������

�
���������
�

�
	�������� 
�����	��	�����������

� �
	�������!�"������#��������#�$	��
������%�� �&���	���'�&�����������!��(��
�	��)�*���	�

�
�

 !� �"#$%&%'()*+�),��*'"&"+'��
�

������$����	����������	�����	������+�
�

 -� 	.)$)/("+�,)&�	0+"*#"�%*1��)'(,(#%'()*�),��20+'('2'"+��
�

"��������������	���$�����
��������	�����������
	���������#������
��'�������,�'������-�!�
	������	����*��	+�
�
-��$�����������������
	��������!%���	�$�������	��	���	����������
	������
-�!�
	����+�
�

 3� �(*2'"+�),��&"4()2+��""'(*/+��
�

�	��������	���������	
�����������������	������!���������������
�.�!���������������	����/�����������$�����������������
�
��������	����
�����0/!�+�
�

 5� �"4("6�),��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1���&).)+"1��7%*/"�(*�
�"80"&+7(.��

�
����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	���	����������
#������������������	����	� ������������������	��0������/������$��	��
!��
��	�����������12�%�������	������0
����3+��-��$����������������2�%�
������
	��������	��	������
	�������������	��4
		���������������
	������
!��	�*�����	+���
�
���	%��$�����5�����������
	������*�����	���������	����
��	�������
$�%���������	����������+�
�
����
����9�������
	������4
		�����������	������������������2�%�
�
	���6���������	���������������	��0������/������$��	��!��
��	�����������
12�%�������	������0
����3+�
�

 �� �"4("6�),��7($1&"*:+��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1���#&2'(*;�
�","&&%$�')�'7"��"#&"'%&;�),��'%'"�,)&��"%$'7�<��.1%'"��

�

Page 15



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	�������������	���
��������������6���������	�����������$����������	6���	��	�����0�����
!���������	�������
���7
�	�����������������!�����������!��������
�	��������	�	��������������	���7
�����	�
�����	�$����������	��0/!�����
������	�������������8��������������
����1��8��3��������������������90!�
���+�
�
-��$����������������������������������	����������������-	����	��	��
'��	���
����	�8�	���1-'83��	�����
����������	���$����
���	���	
��������+���
�
������$���������������
���	���
	�����������������������-'8��	���$����
�	�
����������$�+�
�
"	���#
�%��2�%�������	��0
������������	�������	�������8�����	������
����������������������-'8��������	�����������������������	����	��	��
�������������!�����������!������	����	�������	��������0/!�6����������������
��8����������	���%�������������	������	+�
�
�����0/!��$������������������������-'8������������������	�����	�����
���
����������$������$	��������������������������+��"���
���������������
�������	�������:��:����������+�
�
 ���������7
�����������������	������	�	������������ ����������������
-'8��	���	������������
�:��
���������������������$������0/!�6����������+�
�
����
����9�����������������	������
���	����	���+�
�

!�� �"4("6�),��7($1&"*:+��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1���)(*'�
�)88(''""�),��&(8%&;��%&"��&2+'+���������<��.1%'"��

�
����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	���	�������	�

����������������8����������	����������������	���
����	����������	6��
�	��	�����0�����!���������	�,	���	�+���������$�	��$�����	�����	��	������
���������;:�
�

•� "	���#
�%��������,5��
�����<�90!�!
���2�%�������	��#�������$��	��
2�%�������	��0
�������8����������	�������

•� ������,�$��������������<�2�%�������	��0
�����!�����������
�������	�	��&�
��

•�  �����$������!���������'����������	�8
�����0������<�2�%�������	��
0
�����!������������������	�	��&�
��

�
�������������$�������	�����������
�������'����$�������������	��
�������
����'����#����	��	��0���������90!�4
	����	���
��+��-��$�����������
��������$�	�������
�������'����$������0�����
��������
�����	����
��������
��8���	����������������
��	���	������������$�����������	���		����	�
$�����	������	������	�
�����	���
��	�+���
�
"�������
��+�����$�����	�
�����	��������	����������
	��$�
���	��
�
���7
�	����	
����	�����+���

Page 16



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

�
�����0/!��$����������������������8���$
�������������	������(
�����	��
�	����������������������������	������+��-��$����������������������8�������
������%�����������������������5���������	�����������'����#����	��	��
0���������90!�4
	����	���
��������������
�����
	����������+�
�
�����0/!��$����	�������������������������$���
�������	���
	���	����
����
������8�������	������	�
�����	���������
	�����%�	��
������
������
�����������������	+��0$�������������������$�����������������$
����������
������
�������	�
�����	�������+���
�
"�������
�������������	���(
�����	���	��	��	���������������	�������$���
�������������������8���$����
���	����
	��������	�������	��������
����	����������
��	�������	�
�����	�<��	��
��	���������������������
�
����������������0/!�+�
�
�	���	�$����5����������������������������������������	��0/!��$
���	��
����	��������������	�����+��-��$���������������������0/!�6������������
���	�����	������	�������	��������	�
	��������(
�����	��	�����#����	�
������������	��		
	������
�������	��
�������	��������	�$����
���	����
���	������	�<��
���������	�
�����	�����������	������������
	��$�
�+�
�
-��$������������������
���������8�������
������
���	����������������	�����
�0/!����
����5�����������������	��������������+��
�
4
����������
���	�$��������	��������	����������������������������������	���
����������	��	������	���
	�����������������������$+��-��$���������������
��	���������	�	������	�
�����	�$
�����������$����	��$����������	���+���
�
 ��������5���������
�������	���	���
	��������������	��
��	���������	�����
��������������������	��1�	� �������3��	����������������������������	�����
 �����������������0/!�+�
�
����
����9�����������������	������
���	����	���+�
�

!�� �"4("6�),��7($1&"*:+��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1��	11('()*%$�
�*,)&8%'()*��

�
����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	���	���
����
������	����	������	������
������7
�����������	��0/!�+���������$�	��
�	������	�$�������	���������������;:�
�

•� �����	��"��
����	�����4
�
���8����	��4�$���	�� �	�����������	�����
9��$�%��18�����*�����
���������18$�3���	���'�����<�/����������3+�

•� '�����1�	������������������3���!���-�	�)�		���6����	����	�����	�����
7
����	����������������8���1�=�/����������3+�

•� '����������8��������0�����	��#,��������������!�����	��!
����	�����
!�����	��&�
���	����������!�����	��&�
�� �������1�=�/����������3+�

�
�������$�	��$�����	�����	��	���������������;:�

Page 17



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

�

•� "	���#
�%��������,5��
�����<�90!�!
���2�%�������	��#�������$��	��
2�%�������	��0
�������8����������	������+�

•� ������,�$��������������<�2�%�������	��0
�����!�����������
�������	�	��&�
�+�

•�  �����$������!���������'����������	�8
�����0������<�2�%�������	��
0
�����!������������������	�	��&�
�+�

�
�����	��"��
����	�����4
�
���8����	��4�$���	�� �	�����������	�����
9��$�%��18�����*�����
���������18$�3���	���'�����<�/����������3�
�
9�$������	��	������
������������
�������'����$�����
��������������	�����
�����	������$����������������������8���$����	��������	������	���������
�	����������8$��������	������	����$���	�����	�����	��$�%�+���
�
-��$����	������������������8����������	��	������	������8$���������	��
�������
���������������$�������	������	�����
���	��������	+��-��$�������
�	�������������
��������	����������	�������	��	����	����������	+�
�
�������$�	�����
���$�����������������	������
����������������������
�0/!�;:�
�

•� ����8$��������������������������������#�������	��!
������	��������	��
$�������������	��$�%�+�

•� ����8$���������
�������������	��	�����������	��0/!���	�����������
���	��	������	�������������������������������������������������	��
	+��-��$����������������������	������������	�����������������8����	�
�	(
	���	�$���������0/!���	�����������+���

•� -��$����	������������������8���$�������������	���
����	��������	�������
8$���������	�����������������	����	������	����������$����	���������
�����	�
�����	�������+���

•� -	�����	�������7
����	������$�������������8����
����	�������	��
�
����������	��>�����	�������0/!������$���������
���	�������������
8$������������$���������������������$
����������	��	��	�����
�����
��������������
���	���������+��

�
-��$����������������������8���$����	����
��	����������������������	������
$����	�����������	�����������������	��	����������������������
	���+��
0$���������$�����%	$������������$������$�����	���������$
����������
��������
���������	������������������	�+���
�
'�����	���$������������������������	���
�����������	����	����	������
��
��	�����������	��	��$�%�����$��������������	���
����	�����	����+�
�
'�����1�	������������������3���!���-�	�)�		���6����	����	�����	�����
7
����	����������������8���1�=�/����������3�
�
*�������������������������!���-�	�)�		���6��8�	�������$��������������������
��8���$
����������	���
����	��������	���������������	���������	���:
�����	�������������	��������������	������	���:����	��	����+�����$�������	������

Page 18



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

���������	����������:�����	��	��
��	�������5�����	���������������$
���
���������%�	��	�����
	�+���
�
���������
��	�����������$���$���������������0/!�+�
�
'����������8��������0�����	��#,��������������!�����	��!
����	�����
!�����	��&�
���	����������!�����	��&�
�� �������1�=�/����������3�
�
-	��	������	�������	������	������	������������$�	�����
���$����
�������������	������
�����������������������0/!�;:�
�

•� ���	���������	����	���������
������������������	�������������	������
	�����������	�	������
����������$
���	���+���

�

-��$���
���	�������������	���
���	���,�������������2�%�������	������
0
������������	������������������	�����	����������	�����	�:	�����
���	�������	�����������+��"�	���	������%���%���������	���������
��	�
�����������������������������!������������������	�	��&�
���1!�&�3+�-��
$��������������������������������	����	���$�����
���	�����	�������	�
�����������
	�����	����	�����������������	�����������	������	�����
�	��������������������+���
�
"���������	�������������	�����������$�������	����%�	��	��
�	��������	��	�����	������$����	�����������������������������	�����
	���	�����������+�
�

•� �������	������������	�8����������-	��	����������?	�����	���
���7
�	��
��������	�����������	��	��	������
����	�+���

�

-��$����������������������8���$�����
������$�������������	�������������
����������$�����������	����	��	���
����	��������	�$
����������	���
���������
��+�
�

•� 4�����	����	���������	������������	��$�%���
�

������$����	����
����	������$������$�����	������������$
��������	����
�����	���
����5����	��	��$�%���	������������	�$�	��+��0$����������
���$��������0/!��$��������2�%�������	��0
������������������	�
�������������	��$�������������	��$�%��	��������������
�����������	�
����	��
������������	��������	��������	���
��	�������	�
�����	�
������+�+�
�

•� �������	����8���	���
��
��"������
��18�"3�
+�

�������������������������������	�����������	������������>��������
���������������!�����	��&�
���������	�������������	����8�"�+�����������
�����������
������������
���	����7
�����������������������������	�����
�
���������	����<��
�����
���������������������
������������������
�����	������
���������	���+�� �������7
����	���������������	�����	��
�������������������������$����������������������	������	����+�
�

����
����9��

Page 19



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

1�3� ����������������	������
���	����	���+�
1�3� ��������
�������
������	�����������������8����	�������	�������8$��

��������	��	����$��������	������������������	��������
����
�������������	������0/!�6���	�����������+���

�
!�� �"4("6�),��7($1&"*:+��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1���7($1&"*:+�

�"%&'��2&/"&;�=2*1�����=��<��.1%'"��
�

����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	�����������	�

����������������������	6��0�����!
������4
	�+�
�
!���	����	��������������������������������	6��0�����!
������4
	��
�������������������	�+�
�
-��$�����������������������	�������	���������0!4���
����������������	�

	�	��
���������������
��
��������������������
������	�����
�������'����$�
�	��������������������	�����������������	��	�����������������������2�%������
�	������0
����+��
�
-��$���������7
�����������������8�������	������
	������@����������	��
���
������	��
����������������2�%�������	��0
���������	����������������������
	�����	��	�����������������������	�
�����	�������+�
�
����
����9�����������������	������
���	����	���+�
�

!>� �"4("6�),��7($1&"*:+��)*/"*('%$��"%&'��"&4(#"+�(*��*/$%*1��
""1+�
�"%#7(*/��)+.('%$+������&2+'��
�����<��.1%'"��

�
����������������0������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	���	������
�������	����������������������	��0����������
���1��0�3���������
���	������
�����������������	6���	��	�����0�����!
�������	�2�%�������	������0
�����
����������������������$�����	�
���������$�	����������	��0�����
���
(
�����	���	��������	���������	����	������	+�
�
����������$�������!������0
	�����������	���&�	����� �	�������������	6��
!�����������0�������������	�+�
�
�������$�	�����
���$���������������;:�
�

•� -��$�����������������8$�����������������������2�%�������	������
0
�����$
���	�����������9�$������+��8��	��������������
�����%��
9�$�������
	�
����	������	������
�
����	���
��������%��������	��	�����������
���������	�����9����,�����������
	���+�

•� ��������������8�����������	��	���7
�����	��������	���������	��������
�:�����������������
����������������������	���
��	����������������0�+��
"	�����	����	���������������������	������������
������������$�����%�������
�������	������������������������	���������	��	����������������������
2�%�������	������0
����+��

•� -��$�������������������
����	���	�������2�%�������	������0
���������	��
���	�����	��
���	��������	+�

Page 20



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
�������������
���������

�

•� ������8����������	���%��������	����������������	���"�
���!��������
������$��������������
��������������
���	������	��������������������
�������	�������$+�<�����
�������$�����������������������:�������	��+��

•� �������0�������	����	�����������	��$����������	��	�����!���-�	�
)�		���6��8�	����������$������	
��������	���
��������	���	�	������
������	�����������������0�������	�	�����	���	+�

�
-	�����	����� �����������	����	��7
����	����������$�	�����
���$����
����
����;�
�

•� *��������$�����%	$������������������8���$���	���
���	�����	��������	�
������	��	������	�
�����	���������	��
����������$���������	��
�����0�����	��	
������
��	���������$��	����������	��������	������
!�����	��!
����	�����'����$+��

•� ��0�6���	��	
��������	���������������	���"�
���!�������������
�	��
����$����	�����������������������	6�������$�<��������	��
�������
��������0/!�+�

�
-��$������������������������������	��������$�	����������	6��!��������$���	��
����������	���������8��+����������������������	����������	�����	�������
��8����������
����������������$+��������7
�������"�
���!�������������
�����$����	��	(
	���	�$�����������	6��$
�������������%+��������$���	�
�	������	������$��	��������$���������������"�
����$
��������������
�+�
�
�����0/!��������������������$�������������	6���	��"�
�����	��	�������������
!����������
���	����������
�(��������������������$���	����
������
�����$����������+��#��
	�����%�	����������������$������$���
	�������$�	��
�����$�$
���	�����	�����	����������>����:�������	������
����������������
�����$+�
�

����
����9������������������6�����$��������	��
	�����%�	�����������
�����$�����������	6���	��"�
�����	��	�������������!�������������	����	��
��
����������������+��
�

! � �%'"�%*1��(8"�),��"?'��""'(*/��
�

-��$�������������	��	�����
�
��������	����������	��0/!������	�
��������������������$�	���	��������	���������8��+���
�
�
�

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

��������	
�����������	�����������������������
�������������������������

�
�����	���������������������

�
���������
�

���������	�
�����	�������������	�

� ���������	��������������	��������������
���������	������������
����������
���������

�
�

��� 
 !"��!"#��
�

 ��!����"	��������������#����!��"��������������#�	�������#�	�������	���������
�������"$%�
�

•� ��#�	��	�!�	���"��	�#���#�������������������#�����	��	��&������''�
	#	�()�

�
��� �"$% & !'()*�(+��)!"&"*!��
�

��	�!	��������	��������#����	��)�
�

�,� 	-(%(.'"*�+(&�	/*")$"� )0��(!'+'$ !'()�(+��1/*!'!1!"*��
�

�����"���#�	�������!	�����������������#��#����������	����*	���+��
,�*	�!���*�������� ������	���-����������������	���)�
�
.���������������	��!	������������)�
�

��� �"2'"3�(+��4'%0&")5*��().")'! %��" &!��"&2'$"*�')��).% )0��6') %��"-(&!�
�0& +!���

�
���/����#���	����+��������	�,���������	�������#�	��	��	�#���#�
���������/�����0�	��!�������	����+���������&/0��(�#�	�1�	����	�����
���/���	2��	��	�����	�������������	����������"����������	�2��
���"������/�	���	��������3�"�������������	������	���#�"�	�������#�
���"�������	"��������	�)�
�
���	��	��!������	�#��	��	�������+����������"	����!���	�����
�����""�������#�	�����������������������������#�����	��	�)�
�
4����!��"����	��!��#�����	�#��	��	����������	��#����������/0���	��	���
�	������������������	���#������������#�	����	������##�	������
������������������������	����+���5��	+)�
�
���	���#����������/0������������������������	��	�����	����	��������
�#��������	2��!�	�����������"��������5��	+������	������"����������������
	��	�)�

Page 23



�

�

�
��������������##��	�������	���"����!�	���#����������/0���������	������	�
��������	��+��6	����������	����+������	����
������+����������!��������
7�	�����+����������/0��)�
��
�
����
����7��
&�(� ��������	��	�����������������!���������������������������������

���������������������#�6	���	+���	��	�����&��6��(�������������
/0��2��	�������������	����������"����������	�2�����"������
/�	���	��������3�"�������������	������	���#�"�	�������#����"�����
��	"��������	�)�

�
&�(� �������	������������������/0��2��	��	����������	���������������

���"���#	��������6����������!��������������	+�89���+�������)�
�
�
�

Page 24



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
������������������������

�

��������	
�����������	�����������������������
�������������������������

�
������	������������������������

�
���������
�

�
	�������� 
�����	��	�����������

� �
	�������!�"����#�����$�� �%���	���
&�%���������'�(�������&�������	����!��)��

�
�

 !� 
"#$��#$%&��
�

*��+�������������������������+�	��������	����	������	�����	��������	����
���������	�,-�
�

•� ���
	�����	�����(������'�		� .�/ �	
���01�������23�

•� ���
	�����	�����&����4�	����	� .�/��	
���01�������23�

•� "�+�$�	��������������#�	��������������	���������/��	
���05�������26�
�

 '� �$()"*"#+,-&�,.��-#$*$&#��
�

������+����	����������	�����	�����������6�
�

 /� 	0,),1+$&�.,*�	2&$-($�"-3��,#+.+("#+,-�,.��42&#+#4#$&��
�

"��������������	���+�����
��������	�����������
	�������#�'������
��'�+	��'�&������*�!�
	������7�4���	��!�4�����	��	��#�4��	�
�
8��
�����
�����������+�����	�����	��	��6�
�

 5� �*,0,&$3��$(,-.+14*"#+,-�,.��6+)3*$-7&��,-1$-+#")��$"*#��$*8+($&�+-�
�-1)"-3��	33+#+,-")��-.,*%"#+,-��

�
����������������(������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	�������	����
������	����	������	���9
�������������������������	������������
���
�����������	�������������������	�������������	:���	��	�����(�����
!���������	�;	���	���	����������������	���
����	��������	������
�������
��	����6�
�
�����������������	�����	��
���,-�
�

•� <�	��	����������
������������	�����������������	:��(�����<�������	�
	�����	��:���������������������	:���������
���������������/�����	����������
���$����������	��	��������������52�

•� �������'������� ���=�(�������������+��	��!��
��	�����������
����
��	������>�!�������������3�

•� ;����&���	����?�$�������
	����=�(�������������	��4�����	���������+�
�	��!��
��	���������������
��	������0�!�������������6�

�

Page 25



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	��
������������������������

�

 ��������	���������	������
����������������������	������	��
��	������
������	����	������	��
�������������������	���+��������������	���������������
�	��
�����	������
���	��������	��������#�	��(�������������+��	��!��
��	��
��������:�������6��
�
����
����9�����������	������	������	�������	�����+��������������	��
���������	��
�����	�����#�	��(�������������+��	��!��
��	�����������@����	���
�����6��
�

 �� �$8+$:�,.��6+)3*$-7&��,-1$-+#")��$"*#��$*8+($&�+-��-1)"-3��;+-")��$0,*#�
�3*".#���

�
����(������!��
��	���	�� ��������������	�������	������������������������
#�	��(�������������+��	��!��
��	�����������/(�!�2����?�$�������	������
(
����:���������	�����	�������������������	�������������	:��
�	��	�����(�����!���������	�;	���	���	����������������	���
����	���
�����	������
���������	����6�
�
 ������������+���������������������	�������	���	���������	��+�����������
	��
������	��������	���	���	���	��
��	��	�������	��������6�
�
 �����������������	���������
����������������������������	����
�����������6�
�
����
����9����������������������	�����	���	��+��������
���	��	��
����	����	�������	��������	�������������������������������	����
�����������6�
�

<�� �"#$�"-3��+%$�,.��$=#��$$#+-1��
�

�
��������������������������6����6�6�
�
�

Page 26



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

��������	
�����������	�����������������������
�������������������������

�
������	������������������������

�
���������
�

�
	�������� 
�����	��	�����������

� �
	���������!���� �"���	���
#�"���������$�%�������#�������$�#������
�����&���	����'�����	�

�
�

��� 
 !"��!"#$��
�

�������(�	��������	������	��������	��
�������)*�
�

•� !�����������(�+�	����������	���������,����	������	�	��-�

•� !�����	��� �	������	� ���� .���� /���� ��	��	������ �
	��� �
	����
, �	
���0��������-1��

•� !�����	��� �	������	� ���� ���� 2�	�� ��������� �� 3������� ����� ��
����
, �	
�������	��0��������-1�

�
�%� �"&' ( !)*+$�*,��+!"("$!��
�

������(����	����������	�����	������1�
�

�-� 	.*'*/)"$�,*(�	0$"+&"� +1��*!),)& !)*+�*,��20$!)!2!"$��
�

!��������������	���(�����
��������	�����������
	�������$������
$�(	������+����
	������'���	��	��'��	1�
�
.��
�����
�����������(�����	�����	��	��1�
�

�3� �)+2!"$�*,��""!)+/$��"'1�*+��� +1��4��".!"#0"(��
�

����
����5������������	
���������������	��������	����	��������������
����	�����������������������1�
�

�4� �(*.*$"1��"&*+,)/2( !)*+�*,��6)'1("+7$��*+/"+)! '��" (!��"(8)&"$�)+�
�+/' +1��92"$!)*+$�!*�!6"��*)+!��*##)!!""�*,��()# (:�� ("��(2$!$��

�
����������������%���������
��	���	�� ��������������	�������	����
 �������(��������	������4
����	��(������������	��
��������������2�	��
�����������3��������������
����,2�3��-1�
�
�����������	������!������������������
���	��5�+�������	��%
���������	���
�������	�������	�����2�	�������������3��������������
����,2�3��-���
�	���
����������������������	�1��
�

Page 27



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

!	���$
�+��������������������	�1��%���������������!������������������
���	��
����	����������	�������	�����2�	�������������3��������������
����
,2�3��-��(���	���	�����	��	���������������	��������		��1� �1�$
�+�������
��������(����
��������	��������������	�(�������������5�+�������	������
%
������������������������	�	��"�
������������	���������(�	�������
�	��(
��������������������������	����������	�������	�����2�3��1�
�
 �1�$
�+�(�����+���(���������	�������������	�����	��������2�3���
�����	���������������	��	�������	��	������������������	��	��������
�����	��
�	���������������2�	��%������6������(��	�����
��	�����������,5�+������
�	������%
����-�,2�	��%6��-1�� �1�$
�+�(���������+���(���������	�����
�������	������������ �1���������	�����	��������������	�1�� ��$
�+��	�������
�������������������	������	�����	��2�3��������	����	������	�����	�
����������� �1�������1�
�
 ��������7���������7�������������	���	������� �1��������(���	���	�
����	��	���������������	���	�������	����������������	��������	���������
2�	������������	�����	��������������	�1���
�
��������������	������������������	��������	��������������2�	��%6��������
,�	���������������������1� ��+����	-������
���������
�������
����	��	�������������	*��+�	���������	�������	���	
������������	�1��
����������������������������������������	���������	�����	�������������������
�������������������	��	��������������	���������������2�3��1��
�
 ���������������������
������	����	������	���������	���������	�������������
2�3��������	������������	��������2�	��%6�����������������	��������	���
��������������	�������������	8���	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	���	��
��������������	���
����	��������	������
���������	����1�
�
����2�	��%6�������������	���&
�	��	�������������	�������(���������
���	������(���������	����������1�����������	��(�����&
�	������
����7����������)����1�
�
���������	��(������	��	����������7����������)����1�
�
���������������������������	��������
��	��������&
�	��	����������������
2�	��%6�����������
�������	
����������	���	������������������(����
���������	�1�������������	�����������(����	��������
��	�����������	�1��
�
�������������������������2�	��%6������������������������	������
����	��	����� ���������9������
���	������	����������	�������	�����2�	��
�����������3��������������
����,2�3��-�9���������
����������1�������(���
�	��������
��	�����������	�1���
�
���������������������������������������	����������� �1�������8���������
������	��������2�	��%6��8��������	�����4
���� �1�������8������	��	���
�������)����1��!������������������(���������	������ �1�$
�+��	��������
�������������������
���	1�
�

Page 28



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

:��(�������������������	���
�������	��������	������������
	���� �1��������
(����	�����	��	��1�
�

;�� �(*.*$"1��"&*+,)/2( !)*+�*,��6)'1("+7$��*+/"+)! '��" (!��"(8)&"$�)+�
�+/' +1��	11)!)*+ '��+,*(# !)*+�,(*#�
""1$��" &6)+/��*$.)! '$�����
�(2$!��
������

�
����������������%���������
��	���	�� ��������������	���	���
����
������	����	������	������������������������	��%��������.%����
���
,��%�-��	�����	������	������	����������������2�3��1�
�
����������(��������������(�	�������������	�)�
�

•� �������%
	�����������	���"�	�������	�������������	8��������������%��

•� 2�	�����	��3������������������������%��
�
!�����	����	������	�������	�����������	����������������������	���	�����
�������	�������������	������/7������������� �����	��67���	���	�
,/� 6-��%��������	����	������������	�������7�����������
������������%��
(���
���	����	����������1�
�
;��(�	���������������	����	��	���	���
���	���������������������(�	��
���
�����	��
��	������	����	��4
����	��������������������2�	��%6�����
(��������
����)��
�

•� ��%�� ����� ����� ���� 2�3��� ����
���	� �� ������ �������� �� ��� �������� ��
������	���	�/7������������� �����	��67���	���	�,/� 6-���������
(��� �	�	�����	�� �	�� ��� (��� 
	������ �(� ���� �	��
��	� ���� ���	�
�������� ����� ������
���(
��� ���
	����� �� �������� �
��� �� �������1� � :��
(���������������%���������������������������������������������(����	�
�������������������������	���	��������	������	�������������	�	�1��:��
(�����������������������	�����	����������	��������	�����������1�1�

•� ������(�����<�������	�����3����������:	��	����������=	��������%�1�

•� ��%������������	���������������������+�(	����(�������������	���
�������	��������������2�3��������	�����	��	�����
	�����������1�

•� :�� (��� ����� ����� ��
����	� ��	����� ������ 5�+������ �	�� ���� %
�����
����	�����	���+�	����������	�����
	��(��	���������������	������
���	��������������
������	�
�����	1�

•� ��%������	���	������������������������ �(���
�����	���1�;
����
���� ����� ��	����� �	� ���� ������� ���	�� �������� 
�� �� ���	�����	����
�������� 	
����� �� �����
����� �(� ����� ��	����� �������� 
�� ��
����������	
������� �����
�����	��	��� ��������	����� ��������
��
���������
���1�

•� '����� ��� (��� ����	����� ����� ���� �����(� 	��� �	�������� ��������� �	�
/	���	������(�����������(
�����������	���������������	��
��������	��
(��	� �	������	�� ���� ��+���� ����� 	
����� �� �
������� �����
���� �	��
�������������	
��������
���������	�������4
����1�

•� :�� (��� ����� ����� ��������� ��� ��
���� ��
��� ����� ���� ���	� �	��
����
(����	� ���� ����� �� ���� �����(�� �	�� 	�� �
�&���� �� �� ��������� �����(�
������� ����� (
��� 	�� ��� �	��
���� 
	���� ���� 
����� �� ����

Page 29



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

�������	8�� �����(� (��� +	(	1� � ������� ��������� ����� ����� ��������
(
����	�������������������	�����������(�����������������
���1�

•� ������(�������	�����	�� ���
��� ������	�� ��������������		�	���	������� ��
��� �������� ���
���� ��
	�� ��&������ �����	�� ��(��� �	�� �	���	� �����
�������	� �	�� ��������� ,��	�� ���� 5�+������ �	�� ���� %
����-� (
���
����� �� ������� �
������ �� ����� ����� ��������>� �
������� ��	����� �
���
�����������
��������	
������������
���1�

•� :�� (��� �������� ����� ���� �����	�� ��(� �	������� �������� 
�� ��� 3������
'�����
��� �	�� ����� (
��� 	�� ��� ���������� ������ ���� 2�	��
%6��8�� 6������ ����� �	�
�����	� ������	�1� � ����� (��� ����� �� ���

	������������ ��� ���� 2�	�� %6��� ���� �� �
����� ���� ����	��� �� ����
2�3������?�6�����������1�

•� :���������	�����������������2�3���������������������	���������
���
�	���
�����������������(����������������	������%�1��

•� '�+���������
�����(��	�������"��	����%�� ��������	�������� �����
��%�� �������� ���� �*������� ��������� ���	� ����� 
	���� �	� �����
���	�����������	���	��
��������11�

�
����
����5��
,�-� ����������������	������
���	����	���1�
,�-� ������������
��������������	����������	������2�	��%6��������	������

��������������	�������������	8���	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	��
�	����������������	���
����	��������	������
���������	�������	������
���������������1��

�
;�� �(*.*$"1��"&*+,)/2( !)*+�*,��6)'1("+7$��*+/"+)! '��" (!��"(8)&"$�)+�

�+/' +1��92"$!)*+$�!*�!6"��*)+!��*##)!!""�*,��()# (:�� ("��(2$!$�
�&*+!)+2"1���

�
����������(�������!�������������������/7��
�������.%��$��	������	������
�
���	��5�+�������	��%
������������	�������	�����2�3��������������	�1�
�
!����	�����	��	����������������(��)�
�

•� !	���$
�+��������/7��
�������
���5�+������ �	��$�������(�3�������
�������
���1�

•� ������ /�(������ ��������� 5�+������ �	�� %
����� ������������
�������	�	��"�
��

•�  �����(� ����� 5�+������ �	�� %
����� ������������ �������	�	��
"�
��

�
����������������������+�������������	��������	��������	����(�����
�	���
���������������(�����	�4
����	��,�	��
��	���
������	�����4
����	�-�
�����
�������	��������������2�	��%6����	��������������������	����
��������	��������������2�3��1������4
����	�������������	��������
����
�	��
��	�)�
�

•� �*�����	�����������@�

•� ����������	����
����	���	����@�

Page 30



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

•� A
�	���������
��@�

•� ��������	�������������������@�

•� �����������.%��

•� �����������	��������	������������	������	��@�

•� /������������	��	�������������	��(�+�@�

•� !�
����(�����	��	��������������������@����

•� .���	������������	�����������@�

•� ����B�		������������	���������	��������������������1�
�
;��(�	���������������	����	��	���	���
���	���������������������(�	��
�����������
���������������
�����	��
��	������	����	��4
����	������
��������������2�	��%6��������
����)�
�

•� :��(�����������������
��������	���(�������	���5�+�������	��%
�����
�	� ���� �����(�� �
�� ���� ������� ������	� ����� (
��� ��� ��+�	� ��� ����
2�3���(
�����������������������������
	�������	�
������������������
����� �	�� �
����	����1� � !��� ��	����� ,(���� ���� �7�����	� ��67���-� ����
���	�������� ���	��� �������� ���	�����	�� ����� �� �������� 4
������
��������1���

•� ����2�3�������������
���	��	�����	
���������	�����	���	(�����(
���
�	�����������������	���������������������	����1�

•� �	���	�� ������ �������� ��������� ��4
������ �������� �� ���� ����	��
�7�������
������ �	���������
������	�
�����	�(
���	���������������

	���������� ����2�3������� �������� ����������	1� � �������������������
��������������������������	�����������
	����������	�����	�����	��1�

•� !�������&
�	����	�����������������������������	���+�	��	�����
	�����
��������������������������	������������	���
����	����	�11�

•� ���� ���	�����	�� ������� 	� ��������� (���� �	�������� ������� ������ �	��
������������
������������������������������9��	���������������	���
�������������5�+�������	������%
����1�

•� �	���	�������	������	����	���������������%������:������!�������	��
�	�� ��
	�� ���� 3����	�� ;�(�!	������� ���� 	�� ���	� ���������� ������
���� ���������	� � �� ���� ���	�1� � :	� ����	���� ��� (��� ����� ����� �	
���
�	������	��������	���������������������������	��(����������������	��
�
��������	�����������	������	���	��1�

•� :�� (��� ����� ����� 	�� �	
��� (������	�� ���� ���	� ����	� �� ���� �7����	��

�������	��(�+�������5�+�������	������%
������(�����
	����������
�� ���� �
�� �	�
�����	� ���	� (
��� ��� �����	����� �
�� �� ����
�������	��(�+��	���
����	�1��

•� �	���	������!�
����������������	�����	������(��������������������9�
���(��� �������� ����� ����� ���(�(
������ �������� �� ����2�3����	�� ���
(��� ������	���� ����� ����� ��
��� ��� ���������� �	� ���� ��������8��
�	�
�����	�����	����	�����������������1�

•� :��(����
����������������!�
�������������������	��	��
�����	����������(��
���	� ������ (
��� ����� ���	� �� ����� ��� �����	�	�� ��� ������ �(� ����
��	�����������	������������	
������������
������������
�1�

•� �������	���+����������	�������	�(����	���������	������������	���
���
���������	�����(���	���������
���	���7������1��:��(���
	��+���������

Page 31



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

�	�� ���	���
����	� (
��� ����� �	�� ���� ��	������ �	�� ������	���
�7��	���
���(������������+���11�

•� :�� (��� ����� ����� �	�
������	�� �	��������	� ���� ���	� ����	� �� ���� �*
�����	� �� ����� �������� �������� ��������� �	� ������ 9� (���� ��������
���������	�������������	������������	�������	��
��	��.�(������1�

•� �	���	� ����� �����	�
�����	���
��	��(���������
��� �������������
��
	������	�1�

•� �	���	� ����� �
��� (������	�� ���� 	�� ��� ����	� �� ���� ������	� ����
5�+�������	������%
����1�	������	��������4
�����������������	�����
2�3��8������������	���	��������	*��+�	��������11�

•� �	�
�����	� ����	���� ����$ /����
	�������(���� ����2�	��%6���
�7������	�� �������	���	�� ����� �	�
�����	� ��
��	����	� ���� 	��
���	����������� �	������ ��	�
�����(��	������� ���
����������
����������	�
��������	8��������	
�������$ /����
	������1�

�
:��(��������������������������	��������	��������2�3����(��	�����������	�
(
�������		
	�����(
������������	��
����1�%(���������������������
�����	������	���������	�������1�
�
:	��	��
��	������������
���	�������2�	��%6��8���7�������������	���	��
�������������������������������	�������	������	���4
�������������	������
����������9�	��(
�����������������������������������	�
�����	�������	�1��
:��(�������������������2�	��%6��8��������(
���������
�����������������	��
���	������������	�1�
�
����
����5��
,�-� ����������������	������
���	����	���1�
,�-� ������������
��������������	����������	������2�	��%6��������	������

��������������	�������������	8���	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	��
�	����������������	���
����	��������	������
���������	�������	������
����������������

�
;�� �(*.*$"1�("&*+,)/2( !)*+�*,��6)'1("+7$��*+/"+)! '��" (!��"(8)&"$�)+�

�+/' +1���"! )'$�*,��*2+&)'��*!)*+$�,(*#� &(*$$��*(<$6)("� +1�!6"�
�2#0"(��

�
����%���������
��	���	�� ��������������	��������������2�	��%������
�	��6������(��	�����
��	�����������,5�+�������	������%
����-�(����
�������������	����������	������������������	��	��������
	�����
��������������	1�
�
�����	������	������	�����	��
�����������������������(�	���
	����)�

•� �������5�+��
	����

•� /����#���	����5�+������

•� %��������$�
����
	����

•� B��+������
	����

•� ������������
	����

•� #�������� ��������	�$�
����
	����

•� ����������������
	����

Page 32



��������	
�����������������������������	���
����������	���
����������������������������

�

•� '�+������� ��������	�$�
����
	����
�
!�����	����	������	�����.����/������	��	�������
	����
	����(���
�	�������1�������	������	����������)�

•� ������������������	�������5�+�������	������%
����@��	���

•� ����������	������>��	�(	�������������5�+�������	������%
����1�
�
�����	������	������	����(�������
������	�����(���������������������������
����	��
��������2�	��%6��������	�������������������	�������������	8��
�	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	���	����������������	���
����	���
�����	������
���������	�������	���������������������1�
�
����
����5��
,�-� ����������������	���������������	�������	���1�
,�-� ����������	������	�����	��
��������2�	��%6��������	���������

����������	�������������	8���	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	��
�	����������������	���
����	��������	������
���������	�������	������
����������������

�
;;� �(*.*$"1��"&*+,)/2( !)*+�*,��6)'1("+7$��*+/"+)! '��" (!��"(8)&"$�)+�

�+/' +1���20#)$$)*+$�,(*#��"#0"($�*,�� (') #"+!���*(<$6)("� +1�!6"�
�2#0"(���

�
����%���������
��	���	�� ��������������	��������������2�	��%������
�	��6������(��	�����
��	�����������,5�+�������	������%
����-�(����
����������������	��	������� 3����������������	����(�	���	��	������	�
��������2�	��%6���,	�<���������������-�����������	������	���
�������	�������������	���
����	����������(1�
�
����
����5��
,�-� ����������������	���������������	�������	���1�
,�-� ����������	������	�����	��
��������2�	��%6��������	���������

����������	�������������	8���	��	�����%���������������	�/	���	��
�	����������������	���
����	��������	������
���������	�������	������
����������������

�
;=� � !"��)#"� +1��"+2"�*,��">!��""!)+/��
�

��
����������������������������1����1�1��	�����������%����������1�
�
�
�

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber) 

Date: 16 November 2012 

Subject:  Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England: 
Implementation  

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

 

Summary of main issues  
 
1. Following the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services in England, at its 

meeting on 4 July 2012, the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) agreed 
consultation Option B for implementation.  The JCPCT also agreed the designation of 
congenital heart networks led by the following surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
2. At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(Yorkshire and the Humber) (Joint HOSC) agreed to amend its Terms of Reference to 
cover the implementation stage of the review.   

 
3. The purpose of this report is to update the Joint HOSC in terms of implementation 

phase of the review.   
 
Recommendations 
 
4. That the Joint HOSC note the information presented and determines any other 

appropriate actions and/or scrutiny activity at this stage. 
 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 7

Page 35



 

 

1.0  Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Joint HOSC in terms of the 

implementation phase of the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services in 
England.   

 
2.0  Background information 
 
2.1 Following the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Services in England, at its 

meeting on 4 July 2012, the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) 
agreed consultation Option B for implementation.  The JCPCT also agreed the 
designation of congenital heart networks led by the following surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
3.0  Main issues 

3.1 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Yorkshire and the Humber) (Joint HOSC) agreed to amend its Terms of Reference 
to cover the implementation stage of the review. 

 
3.2 The details presented in this report provide the Joint HOSC with an update in terms 

of the implementation phase of the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac 
Services in England.  The following details are appended to this report: 

 

• Appendix 1: Safe and Sustainable Children’s Congenital Heart Services: 
Implementation Plan during 2012/13 and Transfer into the NHS Commissioning 
Board for April 2013 (August 2012). 

• Appendix 2: Membership details of the Implementation Advisory Group 
(September 2012) 

 
3.3 It should be noted that the first meeting of the Implementation Advisory Group was 

held on 18 September 2012.   The following extract has been taken from the NHS 
Specialised Services website: 

 
Professor Deirdre Kelly, Chair of the Implementation Advisory Group, said: 
 
“On Tuesday 18th September I chaired the first Implementation Advisory Group 
meeting. Attendees included representatives of professional associations, charity 
groups and NHS commissioners. Members were very positive and committed to 
developing patient focussed high quality cardiac networks. We are all aware of the 
need for good communication with our stakeholders, patients and their families and 
of the importance of ensuring patient safety and the continuity of services during the 
transition phase. I very much look forward to working with the group.” 

 
3.4 Members of the Joint HOSC will no doubt be aware that in October 2012, the 

Secretary of State for Health commissioned the Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Page 36



 

 

(IRP) to undertake a full review following referrals from Lincolnshire County 
Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee and Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland’s 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3.5 The following details are attached at Appendix 3 for information and consideration: 
 

• The IRP initial assessment advice (September 2012); 

• The commissioning letter from the Secretary of State for Health (October 2012); 

• The Terms of Reference for the IRP’s review (October 2012); and, 

• A recent IRP media release regarding the review (November 2012). 
 
3.6 It should be noted that since the Secretary of State’s announcement to commission 

a full review by the IRP, the JCPCT has stated that it will work closely with the IRP 
to assist the panel’s review in whatever way possible. The JCPCT has also 
expressed concerns around delaying the implementation process and that planning 
for implementation will continue with the professional associations. 

 
4.0  Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report.   

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 When agreeing consultation Option B for implementation, the JCPCT had regard to 
the Health Impact Assessment (June 2012) report produced by Mott McDonald. 

 
4.2.2 The Health Impact Assessment (HIA) report identified the following as vulnerable 

groups: 
 

• Children (under 16s)* who are the primary recipient of the services under review 
and, therefore, most sensitive to service changes; 

• People who experience socio-economic deprivation; 

• People from Asian ethnic groups, particularly those with an Indian, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi and other Indian subcontinent heritage; 

• Mothers who smoke during pregnancy; and 

• Mothers who are obese during pregnancy; 
 

These are defined as vulnerable groups because they are more likely to need the 
services under review and, are most likely to experience disproportionate impacts. 

 
4.2.3 Prior to finalising its initial report in October 2011, and in order to have a better 

understanding of the extent (number) of vulnerable groups across Yorkshire and the 
Humber, the Joint HOSC requested a detailed breakdown of the information 
detailed in the interim HIA report.  This information has not been provided. 

 
4.3  Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

4.4  Resources and Value for Money  

Page 37



 

 

4.4.1 Financial analysis details considered by the JCPCT were presented in Chapter 14 
of the Decision-Making Business Case. 

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

4.6  Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report, however managing 
potential risks is likely to be a key aspect of the implementation phase of the review. 

5.0  Conclusions 

5.1 At its meeting on 4 July 2012  , the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 
implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the 
following surgical centres: 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
5.2 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(Yorkshire and the Humber) (Joint HOSC) agreed to amend its Terms of Reference 
to cover the implementation stage of the review: 

 
5.3 The details presented in this report provide the Joint HOSC with an update in terms 

of the implementation phase of the review of Children’s Congenital Cardiac 
Services in England and the recently commissioned IRP review.. 

6.0  Recommendations 

6.1 That the Joint HOSC note the information presented and determines any other 
appropriate actions and/or scrutiny activity at this stage. 

 

7.0  Background documents1   

None used 

 

 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not 
include published works. 

 

Page 38



Safe and Sustainable  

 

Safe and Sustainable Children’s Congenital Heart Services 

Implementation Plan during 2012/13 and Transfer into the NHS 

Commissioning Board for April 2013 

2 August 2012 

Introduction 

Implementation of the JCPCT’s decision on the future configuration of children’s congenital 

heart services will present complex challenges.  The NHS in England will need to respond to 

these challenges in a coordinated way; maintaining safe services throughout, whilst many 

organisations themselves are subject to organisational change and a tighter financial 

environment. 

The NHS Commissioning Board (NHS CB) will assume responsibility for commissioning 

children’s congenital heart services from April 2013 and will need to start to contract for the 

services from October 2012. There will need to be a smooth transition of responsibility as 

this passes from the current specialised commissioning arrangements to the NHS CB. The 

collective working of the pre-existing SCGs and the four transitional Cluster SCGs will 

continue with clarity of roles passing to the new regional and local teams of the NHS CB as 

they are established in 2012. National coordination maintaining the corporate memory will 

remain important in the medium term to ensure a consistent approach to implementation and 

compliance with a national model of care. 

It will be crucial for NHS commissioners and the professional associations to support the 

NHS Trusts and NHS staff affected by the eventual decision, and clear communication will 

be needed with the public and parents throughout the process of implementation. Strong 

leadership and open engagement will be required at all levels. 

Phased approach to developing the implementation plan 

A final and detailed implementation plan can only be developed once the JCPCT has made 

a decision on the future configuration of services on 4 July 2012, and once the implications 

of that decision have been considered and discussed between NHS commissioners, relevant 

NHS trusts and other key stakeholders such as user groups and professional associations. 

This document therefore represents the first iteration of the strategy for implementation. 

 

Page 39



    

 

2 

 

Implications of challenge to the JCPCT’s decision 

In view of the high-profile nature of the review it is reasonable to assume that the JCPCT’s 

decision may meet with future challenge, either by way of further judicial review or by 

referrals to the Secretary of State for Health from Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

While the NHS would be unable to finalise implementation to the point of making 

irremediable changes until the challenge has been resolved, the NHS commissioners and 

NHS trusts are free to pursue a process of active preparation for implementation.  

The implementation plan for 2012/13 therefore assumes a process of active preparation for 

implementation until around April 2013 when it is reasonable to assume that the process for 

defending challenge will be complete. At this point, it is planned that permanent changes to 

service delivery can begin to be implemented and embedded assuming that the challenge 

has been successfully defended. 

The defence against challenge will be led by the National Specialised Commissioning Team 

in view of its management of the review process since 2008 and its accumulated knowledge 

of the process. 

Structures for implementation 

i. National project team 

A small national project team will be established by the Director of National 

Specialised Commissioning in July 2012. It is likely that the team will comprise 

members of the current Safe and Sustainable team and be led by the current 

Safe and Sustainable Programme Director. The national project team will 

facilitate a collective oversight of the process of implementation to ensure 

consistent, coherent and legally robust implementation strategies across the 

country. The national project team will:  

· Manage the process of defence against challenge 

· Act as secretariat to the Project Board 

· Provide a formal link to the Department of Health and NHS 

Commissioning Board Authority through the Specialised Commissioning 

National Transition Team up to April 2013 

· Deliver stakeholder forums on specific issues, as required 

· Act as secretariat to the Implementation Advisory Group 

Page 40



    

 

3 

 

· Manage the process of developing standards, outcome measures and 

quality measures, for the proposed Children’s Cardiology Centres and 

District Children’s Cardiology Services (this work is planned to commence 

by September 2012) 

· Develop an implementation model of Operational Delivery Networks 

integrated to the NHS Commissioning Board. These will be established by 

the Local Area Directors1 of the NHS Commissioning Boards. The 

national team will develop a national specification for the networks. 

· Develop a national network of operational delivery networks (ODNs) 

integrated with the Clinical Reference Group for Congenital Heart 

Services.  This group will lead on the annual cycle of delivering the 

‘products’ of commissioning – the service specification, the unified 

national service policies, the quality measures, CQUIN, QIPP, and 

innovation portfolio 

· Provide management support to the Congenital Heart Services Clinical 

Reference Group as it develops its commissioning products 

· Coordinating developmental work with the network leads including shared 

learning across professions and organisations 

· Establish a long-term peer-review process for the networks 

· Coordinate formal engagement with relevant professional associations for 

the development of minimum standards of provision of care for support 

services (such as clinical psychology) and for scoping national training 

and educational needs (such as with the Royal College of Nursing around 

specialist cardiac nursing roles and Royal College of Paediatrics and 

Child Health around increasing the number of Paediatricians with 

Expertise in Cardiology)  

· Develop and manage national communications and engagement 

strategies, including a coordinated response to Freedom of Information 

requests 

                                                           
1
 The Local Area Director posts are currently being advertised by the NHS CB and will be in post by 

the end of July. Ten of the Local Area Teams will be responsible for specialised services 

commissioning, they have the responsibility to establish the Operational Delivery Networks (ODNs) 

Page 41



    

 

4 

 

· Support the work of the national Clinical Reference Groups for Paediatric 

Intensive Care and Neonatal Intensive Care on setting strategic direction 

and setting specifications to strengthen PICU and paediatric retrieval 

services 

Provide a formal link to the separate review of services for adults with congenital heart 

disease 

The national project team will establish a Project Board that will oversee implementation in 

a formal process of monitoring progress against the implementation plan and the key 

principles of implementation (the first such meeting will be held as soon as possible, ideally 

in August 2012). The Project Board will include the Director of National Specialised 

Commissioning and the Specialised Commissioning Group Chief Operating Officers for the 

four regions in the first instance, to be replaced with the newly appointed Local Area Teams  

by November 2012. Terms of reference will be published for the Project Board in August 

2012. 

ii. Regional commissioning leads 

From July 2012 the Specialised Commissioning Group Chief Operating Officers 

for each of the four Regions in England will act as the Regional Commissioning 

Lead for the formation of each of the new congenital heart networks. 

During August the Local Area Teams will be formed with a responsibility for 

specialised commissioning namely: 

· Cumbria, Northumberland, Tyne and Wear 

· South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 

· Cheshire, Warrington and Wirral 

· East Anglia 

· Leicestershire and Lincolnshire 

· Birmingham and the Black Country 

· Bristol, North Somerset, Somerset and South Gloucestershire 

· Wessex 

· Surrey and Sussex 

· London 

Page 42



    

 

5 

 

 

The National Project Team will provide the newly formed Local Area Teams the 

specification for the Operational Delivery Networks and the Service Specifications 

for Designated Paediatric Cardiac Surgery Centres. 

As the new Local Area Team structure is embedded the SCG Chief Operating 

Officer will hand over the commissioning leadership for the development of 

networks to the Local Area Director for Direct Commissioning and no later than 1 

November 2012. The region will then take an oversight and assurance role on 

behalf of the NHS CBA through the Regional Director of Direct Commissioning.  

The Local Area Teams will work with the national project team and NHS 

services in their networks to produce the first iteration of a local implementation 

plan by November 2012 that will: 

· Establish a local implementation commissioning team that covers, finance, 

contracting and information and support from the Public Health England hubs 

alongside their other specialised commissioning responsibilities 

Page 43



    

 

6 

 

· Establish a formal congenital heart network using the nationally defined 

specification 

· Through the Local Area Team Medical Director oversee the implementation of 

the Safe and Sustainable standards in NHS trusts that are designated as 

providers of children’s heart surgical services (addressing any particular 

weaknesses of current and future compliance with the standards in each 

centre as reported to the JCPCT by the Kennedy panel) including increasing 

capacity to the required levels in the surgical centre (for example: Paediatric 

Intensive Care, High Dependency, ward beds and theatres). The national 

team will provide a quality legacy document to be handed over to the Local 

Area Team Medical Director with particular issues related to their local service 

that emerged as part of the Safe and Sustainable review. 

· For those relevant local area teams oversee the de-commissioning of NHS 

trusts that are not designated as providers of children’s heart surgical 

services 

· Identify implementation resource issues in NHS trusts across the networks, 

including a plan to minimise workforce risks and to minimise financial risk to 

NHS trusts and NHS commissioners 

· Ensure stability at all parts of the patient pathway, including compliance with 

central access and waiting time requirements 

· Plan and oversee changes that may be required to interdependent services 

including paediatric intensive care and paediatric retrieval services 

· Working with the National Specialised Commissioning Team / Highly 

Specialised Portfolio of the NHS CB2 on planning and overseeing changes 

that may be required to nationally commissioned services 

· Effective maintenance of contractual relationships 

 

A priority for the SCG Cluster COO / Local Area Director will be to establish formal 

processes of active engagement with the NHS trusts in their networks and the 

development of systems to achieve the necessary structural change. Initial meetings 

will begin from July 2012. This will include ensuring that each of the NHS Trusts that 

currently provide children’s heart surgical services develop detailed project plans, 

undertake full risk assessments and set up credible internal project management 

                                                           
2
 The work of the National Specialised Commissioning Team will pass to the Highly Specialised 

Portfolio of the NHS Commissioning Board. This handover will be complete by April 2013 

Page 44



    

 

7 

 

arrangements by September 2012 to take forward change effectively. The SCG 

Cluster COO / Local Area Director will ensure that each Trust’s internal project plan 

complements and informs the development of, and eventual outputs of, the 

Congenital Heart Networks. 

 

iii. Congenital Heart Network Boards 

 

The SCG Cluster COO / Local Area Director will put in place a commissioner-led 

process for working towards establishing Congenital Heart Network Boards. 

 

It is well recognised that clinical networks thrive best when there is mutual 

professional respect and trust, and a shared vision of the benefits that a well 

managed clinical network can bring to the delivery and quality of care for the 

patient. Developing this climate when there are complex changes to take forward 

that affect NHs staff and patients, as well as institutions, will require significant 

leadership and sensitivity. 

 

The new congenital heart networks will embrace many organisations and 

professionals needed to deliver care to patients and their families, but the 

contract between commissioner and provider delivering specialised congenital 

heart services must be with a legal entity. 

The contract for the Operational Delivery Network will preferentially be held with 

the Trust that provides the surgical centre, Local Area Teams may wish to 

consider other options for provider hosting. The Trust will host the network3, be 

responsible for overseeing its development and creating the working partnerships 

with clinical teams and organisations that will take forward the changes required.  

This host trust will receive transitional resources to deliver these complex 

integrated services across the organisations providing the pathway of care, 

including for example, outreach specialist clinics in DGHs. The host trust will 

                                                           
3
 It is assumed for the purpose of this paper that there will be (depending on the JCPCT’s eventual 

decision on the number of surgical units in London) two or three congenital heart networks covering 

London, the East and South East of England rather than one. In any event there are potentially 

unique challenges in London given the number and proximity of the current surgical units. The 

eventual arrangements, including project arrangements, will be determined by London commissioners 

and the London Trusts as a matter of priority. 

Page 45



    

 

8 

 

need to develop formal agreements with each organisation in the network that 

reflect mutual responsibilities. 

The host trust will need to establish appropriate project arrangements (that 

accord with the national approach) by engaging key organisations affected by the 

decision, and will be responsible (with assistance from the Local Area Team) in 

establishing a Congenital Heart Network Board. This will necessitate each host 

Trust establishing a senior project team by September 2012. 

 

The Congenital Heart Network Board will eventually comprise members from a 

range of NHS and external organisations across each network and will include 

parent and patient representation and NHS commissioners. A national template 

for terms of reference and membership will be included in the national service 

specification for the Operational Delivery Network produced by the national 

project team by September 2012 (though each Congenital Heart Network 

Board will be able to apply for derogation from the network specification if local 

issues apply). 

 

Each Congenital Heart Network Board should be established in shadow form 

by January 2013, including the appointment of a senior clinician to lead the 

Congenital Heart Network Board, as envisaged by the Safe and Sustainable 

standards. Managerial and administrative support should also be identified by the 

host Trust4. The Local Area Director will oversee a commissioner-led process 

that is appropriate for local circumstances (but which is consistent with the 

national approach) to identify and secure appropriate membership to each Board. 

 

Each Congenital Heart Network Board will be expected to ensure that 

membership and scope sufficiently reflects the various NHS services that see 

children with congenital heart disease, and their families including pregnant 

mothers, for the entirety of the patient pathway from antenatal diagnosis, 

maternity and obstetrics through to the transition to adult congenital heart 

services.  

 

                                                           
4
 The potential resource implications of establishing the Congenital Heart Network Boards have been 

addressed in the financial analysis that will be presented to the JCPCT on 4 July 2012  

Page 46



    

 

9 

 

Each Congenital Heart Network Board will have senior representation on the 

national Implementation Advisory Group. 

 

Formal terms of reference for the Congenital Heart Network Boards will 

included in the network specification delivered by the national project team in 

September 2012 but as broad principles they will be expected to achieve the 

following: 

 

· A network approach across the entirety of the patient pathway which 

reasonably responds to any particular local issues identified by 

respondents to public consultation, and which is reasonably aligned with 

networks for fetal services, trauma networks, services for adults with 

congenital heart disease5, neonatal and paediatric retrieval services, and 

other relevant services 

 

· Integration with the Clinical Senates developing as part of the NHS CB 

clinical advice structure. Each Congenital Heart Network will need to 

identify a lead Clinical Senate it relates to. 

 

· Common clinical protocols and guidelines across the network for the 

management of patient pathways and treatment thresholds, including the 

care of children with cardiac conditions requiring non-cardiac interventions 

 

· Protocols for the transfer of children requiring interventional treatment and 

protocols for the transfer of children by ambulance from home to the most 

appropriate point in the pathway 

 

· A strong network of specialist cardiac nursing support which accords with 

the role descriptions developed by the Royal College of Nursing6  

 

· Guidelines for communication between services in the network 

 

                                                           
5
 The Safe and Sustainable Steering Group has advised the JCPCT that the eventual aim should be 

integrated networks covering paediatric and adult congenital heart networks. Emerging work from the 

x Clinical Reference Group also supports this approach. 

6
 The role descriptions are annexed to the Safe and Sustainable standards 

Page 47



    

 

10 

 

· Common record-keeping throughout the network, ensuring each 

professional has access to records at the point of treatment 

 

· Regular multi-disciplinary team meetings, the composition of which is 

pathway driven 

 

· Agreed outcome measures and plans to achieve them, including 

consistent processes for data collection, analysis, benchmarking, 

reporting and acting on conclusions, including notification recording and 

dissemination of serious incidents that occur across the network 

 

· Audit of referral, waiting time and cancellation data 

 

· Development of tele-medicine across the network 

 

· Research activities across the network to instil and disseminate best 

practice, including in partnership with Higher Education institutions 

 

· Education and training strategy for the range of professionals in the 

network 

 

· Best practice quality assurance and an annual report on the 

achievements and weaknesses of the network (and a description of 

remedial action plans) 

 

· Consistent high quality information for parents and children, ensuring that 

services in the network are culturally sensitive to the needs of the local 

population 

 

· Ongoing active engagement with local and national parent / patient 

groups and other community groups 

 

iv. Implementation Advisory Group 

An Implementation Advisory Group (IAG) comprising clinical experts 

(nominated by the relevant professional associations), lay experts, Congenital 

Heart Network leads and the Local Area Directors will be established in 

Page 48



    

 

11 

 

September 2012, chaired by Professor Deirdre Kelly. Formal terms of reference 

(including membership) will be delivered by the national project team7.  

The IAG will provide expert advice to the Local Area Directors and national 

project team on relevant clinical issues during the period of implementation 

including: 

· Establishing congenital heart networks and referral pathways that accord with 

the agreed model of care, and their alignment with other clinical networks  

· De-commissioning of surgical services in centres that are not designated as 

providers of surgery; 

· Lead on the development of standards for Children’s Cardiology Centres and 

District Children’s Cardiology Services, including a process of engagement 

with key stakeholders 

· Implementation of the Safe and Sustainable standards in centres that are 

designated as providers of surgery, including compliance with other relevant 

national guidance 

· Advise the National Clinical Reference Group on the development of service 

specifications for services in the congenital heart networks  

· Impact to inter-dependent clinical services, including paediatric intensive care 

services, retrieval services and nationally commissioned services 

· Safe service planning for rare and complex congenital heart procedures  

· Roles, responsibilities and relationships between the various services in a 

network that see children with congenital heart disease, and the contracting 

arrangements between them 

· Improving the collection, analysis and reporting of outcome data by surgical 

units 

 

This advice will cover inter alia: 

 

· Workforce and training implications 

· Capacity and resource requirements 

· Clinical governance, audit and reporting 

· Identification of potential risks to successful implementation and mitigations 

                                                           
7
 The National Specialised Commissioning Team has consulted with relevant professional 

associations and NHS organisations on potential membership 

Page 49



    

 

12 

 

· Communications with staff and the public 

 

The IAG’s deliverables will include: 

 

· Advice to NHS commissioners that will inform the updating of the implementation 

plan over the period of implementation, responding to the various challenges and 

opportunities of implementation 

· Quality standards for Children’s Cardiology Centres and District Children’s 

Cardiology Services that are endorsed by key stakeholders, and the development 

of a designation process 

· Exceptional reports, as required, to NHS commissioners and key stakeholders 

that provide advice on significant implementation issues 

· A planned process for the implementation of recommendations around improving 

the reporting of outcome data, agreed with key stakeholders  

The IAG will need to continue into the 2013/14 year following transition of service 

commissioning into the NHS CB. They will become advisory to the Highly 

Specialised Portfolio of the Medical Directorate in the NHS Commissioning 

Board. The group will be stood down by the National Clinical Director of 

Specialised Commissioning once the networks have been established and the 

fundamental changes of service provision have been delivered. 

v. Clinical Reference Group 

Synergistic working across the IAG and the Congenital Heart Clinical 

Reference Group (chaired by Dr Graham Stuart of the British Congenital 

Cardiac Association) will enhance the quality of advice offered to NHS 

commissioners. The IAG will provide the detailed advice on implementation 

issues that will benefit NHS commissioners in the short to medium term once the 

JCPCT has made a decision. The CRG will be responsible for assuring the 

commissioning products such as service specification, and assuring the quality 

measures, service policies, CQUIN, and QIPP plan for the NHS CBA and NHS 

CB.  Hence the IAG will act as a sub-group of the Clinical Reference Group for 

the commissioning products but report into the National Specialised 

Commissioning Team and transfer to the Portfolio Board of the NHS CB by April 

2013 for its wider remit of supporting this set of major service change. It is 

proposed that Dr Stuart is a member of the IAG to ensure appropriate cross-

Page 50



    

 

13 

 

cover across the two groups, in addition to other senior representatives of the 

relevant professional associations who are expected to sit on both groups (such 

as the President of the British Congenital Cardiac Association). 

Page 51



    

 

14 

 

Specific work streams in 2012/13 

 

1. National workshop in October 2012 

A facilitated national workshop will be delivered by the national project team in October 

2012 for representatives of NHS trusts (including those who deliver support services in the 

network), Local Area Directors, members of the Implementation Advisory Group and 

representatives of the professional associations. The purpose of the workshop will be to 

identify priority issues that would benefit from a coordinated approach, discuss the proposed 

specification for the establishment of Congenital Heart Networks, and to agree principles 

for the next iteration of the national implementation strategy.  

2. Events for specific professions 

Facilitated events will also be delivered by the national project team for specific 

professional groups in the autumn of 2012. For example, the National Specialised 

Commissioning Team has begun discussions with the Royal College of Nursing about 

planning for a national event for nurses that covers issues such as: training and education, 

career pathways, workforce planning and role descriptions. Related to these events will be a 

need for the national project team to work with the professional associations and the NHS 

Trusts to scope potential staff movement and future workforce and training needs so that the 

NHS is able to commission appropriately specialist education courses as required. 

3. Event for national user groups and parent groups 

The national project team will hold a small facilitated event with national user groups and 

national parent groups in September 2012. The purpose of  will be to consider immediate 

issues presented by the JCPCT’s decision in terms of communication with parents and 

users, and to review the various issues for implementation suggested  by these groups 

during consultation in light of the JCPCT’s decision. The outcome of this event will inform the 

next iteration of the implementation plan and the communications plan.  

  

4. Defining network boundaries 

An immediate priority for the national project team and the Cluster SCG COO / Local 

Area Directors will be to determine in detail the precise geographical area to be served by 

each of the congenital heart networks. There will be minimum deviation from the JCPCT’s 

high level decision on postcodes assigned to networks but a further ‘precision approach’ will 

Page 52



    

 

15 

 

be required to define the networks at the boundaries using local intelligence. This work 

should be completed by October 2012. 

5. Coordinated Hand Over to the NHS CB 

As described the leadership for the initiation of the first stages of preparation for 

implementation will be from the Cluster SCG Chief Operating Officers. The recently 

appointed Regional Directors of the NHS CB will appoint a Regional Director of Direct 

Commissioning. The Cluster SCG COOs will hand over the leadership to this Director (at a 

point that may be at different times). The Regional Director for Direct Commissioning will be 

appointing a Regional Programme Manager for the Women and Children National 

Programme of Care during 2012.  Once all 4 regional Programme Managers are in place the 

national team will progressively handover components of the change programme to the 

National Programme Director for the Women and Children National Programme of Care. 

The national transformation team is proposed to continue as part of the Improvement and 

Transformation Directorate (subject to further discussion). The Programmes of Care will 

need to support of a transformation team that has full knowledge of the history of the 

programme of work. 

Following the NHS CB Local Area Directors appointments in July the Local Area Directors of 

Direct Commissioning, Medical Director, Nursing Director, and Finance Director will be 

appointed. It will be the Local Area Teams responsibility to establish contracting 

arrangements for the network and services using national defined specifications and 

supporting products. At the earliest opportunity it is proposed that the Local Area Director 

pick up the forward planning of the establishment of the Congenital Heart Networks. 

6. Planning for the transfer of activity 

Local implementation plans developed by the Cluster SCG COO / Local Area Directors will 

plan for a transfer of activity in the medium term, by April 2014. They will work to a plan that 

assumes maintaining current referral patterns and no significant change to service delivery 

in the short term, and a phased approach to transferring activity to designated surgical units. 

However, mindful of the potential risks of more immediate change highlighted by some 

respondents to consultation, there will need to be active response to staff changes if they 

prove to be significant. A more detailed analysis of potential risks in this respect will be 

included in the second iteration of the national implementation plan (October 2012) after the 

JCPCT’s decision has been announced and after the national workshop has been held in 

September.  

Page 53



    

 

16 

 

Cluster SCG COO / Local Area Directors will also address how to manage the process of 

embedding change in local NHS settings. All of the JCPCT’s viable options for 

reconfiguration envisage significant change in the relationship between some local NHS 

Trusts and the relevant surgical unit. Some local hospitals will become part of a congenital 

heart network that is led by a surgical unit that has not previously been the lead surgical unit 

for the local hospital’s population; in many cases outreach clinics will have been held in the 

local hospital by the previous surgical unit.  

There will need to be a well managed process for identifying local areas that will experience 

significant change, establishing effective relationships across the surgical units and local 

hospitals and planning for the eventual transfer of responsibility (including outreach clinics) 

to the new surgical unit. The plans for addressing these issues will be part the local 

implementation plans developed by each Cluster SCG COO / Local Area Director but 

responsibility will also rest with the Congenital Heart Network Boards, for example in the 

development of patient pathways and clinical protocols.  

7. Workforce and Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 

(TUPE) 

 While it is clear that responsibility for addressing the employment and workforce 

implications of the JCPCT’s decision rests with the NHS Trusts (in their roles of current and 

potential employing bodies) the process of implementation will benefit from a common 

understanding between the Local Area Teams, the national project team and the NHS Trusts 

on the potential employment implications of the JCPCT’s decision, including the application 

of the TUPE regulations. The national project team, taking legal advice, will develop a 

document that establishes the legal principles that are relevant to the next iteration of the 

implementation plan in light of the JCPCT’s decision. 

8. Potential impact to PICU and retrieval services 

There are a number of potential risks that the JCPCT has identified8 that will require 

mitigation. These include: diminished resilience and flexibility in PICUs that would no longer 

accept cardiac admissions, future ability to attract and retain skilled staff in diminished 

PICUs, the need to develop sufficient capacity in the PICUs that would accept cardiac 

admissions in the future and the impact of changes in PICUs to associated paediatric 

retrieval teams. Mitigation strategies will be developed and overseen by the Cluster SCG 

COO / Local Area Director as part of the local implementation plan but national 

                                                           
8
 As set out in the Pre Consultation Business Case, consultation document and Decision Making 

Business Case 

Page 54



    

 

17 

 

coordination is desirable. To this end, the Director of National Specialised Commissioning 

has established a small working group to scope the current delivery of paediatric and 

neonatal retrieval services across the country to inform the development of a national plan to 

strengthen retrieval services across the country. The work stream will integrate with the 

Paediatric Intensive Care and Neonatal Intensive Care national clinical reference groups and 

is working with the President of the Paediatric Intensive Care Society and representatives of 

PICANET. The work will inform the CRG on the development a specification for a 

programme of work to assist NHS commissioners in planning and delivering sufficient 

capacity in PICUs across England. A formal process for feeding the outcome of the national 

work into local project plans will be developed by the Director of National Specialised 

Commissioning by September 2012. 

9. Children’s Cardiology Centres 

The professional associations, via the Safe and Sustainable steering group, have advised 

that the proposed Children’s Cardiology Centres are a viable proposition. However, potential 

risks to the viability of the CCCs have been highlighted during the process of consultation 

and the steering group has advised that mitigation plans are developed.  

The national project team will manage a process of engagement with the professional 

associations and other key stakeholders, including the development of standards for the 

CCCs (timeline to be confirmed by the Implementation Advisory Group in due course). A 

formal process will be established by the national project team that enables local 

implementation plans to benefit from the advice offered by the professional associations in 

this respect.  

10. Contracts and finance  

The contracts for paediatric cardiac surgery centres will be part of the single operating model 

for specialised services of the NHS CB. A single provider contract will cover all prescribed 

services of the NHS CB and will refer to the national contract specification. There will be no 

variance in the content of the contract specification but providers may apply for derogation 

with their Local Area Team from the specification to the NHS CB. This for example would be 

how the contracts for the decommissioned services would be handled.  

A nationally coordinated finance sub-group will be established by the national project team in 

September 2012 with time-limited terms of reference to develop, for the benefit of the Local 

Area Teams, the next iteration of the implementation plan in so far as it relates to financial 

issues (this will include a plan for addressing the implementation issues identified in the 

capacity review and Decision Making Business Case and a formal means of capturing 

Page 55



    

 

18 

 

provider issues). SCG Chief Operating Officers will advise the national project team on 

membership of this group. The finance sub-group will publish its report by November 2012 to 

inform the development of local implementation plans. The Local Area Teams will jointly 

decide in November 2012 whether it would be helpful for a nationally coordinated sub-group 

to continue for the remainder of the 2012/13 year 

11. . Communications and engagement strategy 

It will be important that the public and key stakeholders are kept informed of the emerging 

implementation plan, and progress against the plan. This is likely to require local 

engagement in addition to printed literature. A detailed plan will be published by the national 

project team in July 2012 and updated throughout the 2012/13 year. 

Page 56



    

 

19 

 

 

4 July 2012 JCPCT’s final decision 

August 2012 National project team established with Cluster SCG COOs 

 August 2012 First meeting of the national project team and Cluster SCG COOs 

 August 2012 First meetings between Cluster SCG COOs and NHS Trusts 

 August 2012 First meeting between the national project team and national user / parent 

groups 

 August 2012 First iteration of communications and engagement strategy published by 

national project team 

September 

2012 

Establishment of the finance sub-group 

September 

2012 

First meeting of the Implementation Advisory Group 

September 

2012 

National workshop for NHS Trusts, Local Area Directors and IAG members 

September 

2012 

National project team delivers national specification for Congenital Heart 

Networks (legal, governance, terms of reference) 

September 

2012 

NHS Trusts confirm internal project management arrangements 

September 

2012 

First workshops for specific professional associations delivered by national 

project team 

September 

2012 

Formal process relating to national coordination of work around PICU and 

paediatric retrieval services delivered by Director of National Specialised 

Commissioning 

October 2012 Work to define network boundaries completed by national project team and 

Local Area Directors 

October 2012 Second iteration of national implementation plan delivered by national 

project team 

November 

2012 

Finance sub-group delivers its report on finance-related implementation 

issues 

November 

2012 

Local Area Directors produce first iteration of local implementation plans 

assured by the Regional Director of Direct Commissioning 

December 

2012 

Hand over of agreed parts of the programme of change to the Women and 

Children National Programme of Care with continued support from the 

National project team 

January 2013 Congenital Heart Network Boards established in shadow form, including 

appointment of a senior clinical lead 

April 2013 NHS Commissioning Board assumes commissioning responsibility for 

paediatric congenital heart services 

April 2014 Transfer of activity to newly designated surgical units complete 

Page 57



    

 

20 

 

 

Page 58



S
A

F
E

 A
N

D
 S

U
S

T
A

IN
A

B
L

E
: 

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 O

F
 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 A

D
V

IS
O

R
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
, 
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0
1
2

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o
r 

D
e
ir
d
re

 K
e
lly

 
C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

A
d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o
r 

o
f 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 H
e
p
a
to

lo
g

y
 a

t 
B

ir
m

in
g

h
a
m

 C
h
ild

re
n
's

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
N

H
S

 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t,
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 

C
a
re

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
  

 

J
e
re

m
y
 G

ly
d
e
 (

s
e
c
re

ta
ri
a
t)

 
S

a
fe

 a
n
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
S

a
fe

 a
n
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 
 

D
r 

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
tu

a
rt

 
C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
H

e
a
rt

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

G
ro

u
p
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

C
a
rd

io
lo

g
is

t,
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 
o
f 

B
ri
s
to

l 
N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t  

  D
r 

Ia
n
 J

e
n
k
in

s
 (

P
a
s
t 

P
re

s
id

e
n
t)

 
   D

r 
P

e
te

r 
M

a
rc

-F
o
rt

u
n
e
 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 C

a
re

 S
o
c
ie

ty
 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 C

a
re

 &
 

A
n
a
e
s
th

e
s
ia

, 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 o
f 

B
ri
s
to

l 
N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

is
t 

a
n
d
 C

lin
ic

a
l 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
ri
ti
c
a
l 
C

a
re

, 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 

   M
r 

D
a
v
id

 B
a
rr

o
n
 

   M
r 

L
e
s
lie

 H
a
m

ilt
o
n

 (
P

a
s
t 

P
re

s
id

e
n
t)

 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 f

o
r 

C
a
rd

io
th

o
ra

c
ic

 
S

u
rg

e
ry

 o
f 

G
re

a
t  

B
ri
ta

in
 a

n
d
 

Ir
e
la

n
d
 

   C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

C
o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
C

a
rd

ia
c
 S

u
rg

e
o
n
, 

B
ir
m

in
g

h
a
m

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
N

H
S

 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t  

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

C
a
rd

ia
c
 S

u
rg

e
o
n
 a

n
d
 f
o
rm

e
r 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
S

a
fe

 a
n
d
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 
S

te
e
ri
n
g

 G
ro

u
p
, 

N
e
w

c
a
s
tl
e

-u
p
o
n
-T

y
n
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 

Page 59



  D
r 

T
o
n
y
 S

a
lm

o
n
 (

P
re

s
id

e
n
t)

 
   D

r 
R

o
b
in

 M
a
rt

in
 (

P
re

s
id

e
n
t-

E
le

c
t)

 
    D

r 
A

la
n
 M

a
g

e
e
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 C

o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
C

a
rd

ia
c
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
C

a
rd

io
lo

g
y
, 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 a
n
d
 A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
C

a
rd

io
lo

g
y
, 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 
o
f 

B
ri
s
to

l 
N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 C
a
rd

io
lo

g
is

t,
 R

o
y
a
l 

B
ro

m
p
to

n
 &

 H
a
re

fi
e
ld

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 

  D
r 

D
a
v
id

 M
a
b

in
 

   D
r.

 P
. 

V
e
n
u
g

o
p
a
la

n
  

  

R
o
y
a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

s
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

 H
e
a
lt
h

 
  C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

ia
n
 w

it
h
 E

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 

C
a
rd

io
lo

g
y
, 

R
o
y
a
l 
D

e
v
o
n

 &
 E

x
e
te

r 
N

H
S

 
F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 H
o
n
o
ra

ry
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

ia
n
s
 

w
it
h
 E

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 C

a
rd

io
lo

g
y
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
In

te
re

s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 

 

  F
io

n
a
 S

m
it
h
 

  E
liz

a
b
e
th

 A
ry

e
e
te

y
 

R
o
y
a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 
  A

d
v
is

e
r 

in
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

, 
R

o
y
a
l 

C
o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 
 L
e
a
d
 N

u
rs

e
, 

E
a
s
t 

M
id

la
n

d
s
 C

o
n
g

e
n
it
a
l 
H

e
a
rt

 
C

e
n
tr

e
, 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 o
f 

L
e
ic

e
s
te

r 
N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t  

 

D
r 

R
a
v
i 
G

ill
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

a
rd

io
th

o
ra

c
ic

 
A

n
a
e
s
th

e
ti
s
ts

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 C

a
rd

ia
c
 A

n
a
e
s
th

e
s
ia

 a
n
d
 

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 C

a
re

 M
e
d
ic

in
e
, 

S
o
u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 

Page 60



U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 H

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 

D
r 

V
im

a
l 
T

iw
a
ri

 
R

o
y
a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

D
o
n
n
a
 K

ir
w

a
n

 
N

H
S

 F
e
ta

l 
A

n
o
m

a
ly

 S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 O
ff

ic
e
r,

 N
H

S
 F

A
S

P
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o
r 

B
a
s
k
a
n
 T

h
ila

g
a
n
a
th

a
n
 

R
o
y
a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
O

b
s
te

tr
ic

s
 a

n
d
 

G
y
n
a
e
c
o
lo

g
y
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o
r 

o
f 

F
e
ta

l 
M

e
d
ic

in
e
, 

S
t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 
H

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
t  

 

D
r 

S
a
ra

 O
’C

u
rr

y
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

C
lin

ic
a
l 
P

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
is

t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
in

g
 i
n
 

P
a
e
d
ia

tr
ic

 C
a
rd

io
lo

g
y
, 
G

re
a
t 
O

rm
o
n
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n
 N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

 

A
n
n
e
 K

e
a
tl
e
y
-C

la
rk

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
e
a
rt

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n

 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
e
a
rt

 F
e
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
C

u
m

p
e
r 

T
h
e
 S

o
m

e
rv

ill
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

 
C

h
a
ir
m

a
n
, 
S

o
m

e
rv

ill
e
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

 
 

J
o
 S

h
e
e
h
a
n
 

N
H

S
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 
A

c
ti
n
g
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

  D
r 

M
ir
ia

m
 M

c
C

a
rt

h
y
 (

o
b
s
e
rv

e
r)

 
 T

o
 b

e
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 (

o
b
s
e
rv

e
r)

 
 K

a
th

y
 C

o
lli

n
s
 (

o
b
s
e
rv

e
r)

 

D
e
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
: 

 
 N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 I
re

la
n
d
 

 W
a
le

s
 

 S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

  C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

in
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 M

e
d
ic

in
e
, 

P
u
b
lic

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 f

o
r 

N
o
rt

h
e
rn

 I
re

la
n
d
 

  N
u
rs

in
g
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

d
v
is

e
r,

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 D

iv
is

io
n

 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

1

6th Floor 

157 – 197 Buckingham Palace Road 

London 

SW1W 9SP 

The Rt Hon Jeremy Hunt MP 

Secretary of State for Health 

Richmond House 

79 Whitehall 

London SW1A 2NS 

21 September 2012 

 

Dear Secretary of State 

 

REFERRAL TO SECRETARY OF STATE FOR HEALTH 

The Safe and Sustainable review of children’s congenital heart services 

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee 

 

Thank you for forwarding copies of the referral letters from Cllr Christine Talbot, Chair of 

the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire (HSC), and from Michael Cooke, Chairman 

and Ruth Camomile, Vice Chairman of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Joint 

Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee (LLR Scrutiny Committee) The National 

Specialised Commissioning Team (NSCT) provided initial assessment information. A list of 

all the documents received is at Appendix One.  

 

The IRP has undertaken an initial assessment, in accordance with our agreed protocol for 

handling contested proposals for the reconfiguration of NHS services. The IRP considers 

each referral on its merits and its advice in this case is set out below. The Panel concludes 

that these referrals are suitable for full review. 
 

Background 

Following a higher than expected number of deaths of children receiving heart surgery 

between 1984 and 1995, the Bristol Royal Infirmary Inquiry report (the Kennedy report) 

was published in 2001 recommending that specialist expertise be concentrated in fewer 

surgical units in England. Further consideration by the Department of Health (DH) and 

relevant medical bodies followed until, in May 2008, the NSCT was asked to undertake a 

review with a view to reconfiguring surgical services for children with congenital heart 

disease. Taking into consideration concerns that surgeons and resources may be spread too 

thinly across the centres, the review considered whether expertise would be better 

concentrated on fewer sites than the current eleven in England.   

 

The Safe and Sustainable team was established to manage the review process on behalf of 

the ten Specialised Commissioning Groups (SCG) and their local primary care trusts (PCT). 

In December 2008, an expert clinical Steering Group was formed to direct the process of 

developing a report to the NHS Management Board and DH Ministers.  

Page 63



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

2

Draft quality standards, against which surgical centres would be assessed, were published in 

September 2009 and sent directly to all health overview and scrutiny committees (HOSC) 

and other organisations for comment. The final version of the standards was published in 

March 2010. Also in March 2010, following a number of post- surgical deaths, surgery at 

the paediatric cardiac unit at the John Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford, was suspended.   

 

A process of self-assessment by surgical centres commenced in April 2010. In the same 

month, the Safe and Sustainable team published Children’s Heart Surgery – the Need for 

Change. Later in April 2010, the NHS Operations Board recommended to DH Ministers that 

PCTs delegate their consultation responsibilities and decision-making powers to a joint 

committee of PCTs (JCPCT). The Secretary of State for Health approved the establishment 

of the JCPCT in June 2010. The revised NHS Operating Framework confirmed that the Safe 

and Sustainable review was expected to deliver recommendations for consultation in the 

autumn of 2010. 

 

Between May and June 2010, an expert panel, chaired by Professor Sir Ian Kennedy, visited 

each surgical centre to meet staff and families and to assess each centre’s ability to comply 

with the standards. Pre-consultation engagement events commenced in June 2010. In 

September 2010, the case for change was supported by the National Clinical Advisory Team 

and proposed processes for consultation were endorsed by OGC Gateway review. The 

JCPCT met for the first time as a formally constituted body in October 2010. Briefings for 

HOSCs by SCG representatives began the following month.  

 

In August 2010, a review conducted by South Central strategic health authority (SHA) 

recommended that the paediatric cardiac surgical service at the John Radcliffe Hospital, 

Oxford, should remain suspended pending the outcome of the Safe and Sustainable review.  

 

In November 2010, on behalf of the JCPCT, a panel of experts chaired by Mr James 

Pollock, consultant congenital cardiac surgeon, investigated historical deaths at three 

surgical units in Leeds, Leicester and London (the Evelina Children’s Hospital). The 

outcome of this investigation was presented to the Kennedy panel to consider whether it was 

necessary to revise its assessment of any of the three centres. The Kennedy panel found no 

cause to revise its assessment and the panel’s report was published in December 2010.  

 

Options for consultation were agreed by the JCPCT in February 2011 and a four-month 

public consultation began in March 2011. The consultation proposed concentrating clinical 

expertise on fewer sites by reducing the number of surgical centres from eleven to either six 

or seven. A judicial review of the proposal to reduce the number of surgical centres in 

London from three to two centres was initiated by the Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS 

Foundation Trust.  

 

A briefing for HOSCs, informing them of the forthcoming launch of the consultation, had 

been issued in February 2011. Earlier communications to HOSCs, notably a Centre for 

Public Scrutiny briefing in April 2010, had alerted them to the intention to conduct a formal 

Page 64



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

3

consultation and encouraged them to consider the need for a joint committee. In recognition 

of changes to membership resulting from local elections in May 2011, the deadline for 

receipt of consultation responses from HOSCs was extended to 5 October 2011. In the 

event, no national joint committee was formed and arrangements for scrutiny varied around 

the country with a mixture of individual and area and regional joint committees ultimately 

responding to the consultation.  

 

Representatives of East Midlands SCG provided a presentation on the Safe and Sustainable 

review to a meeting of the LLR Scrutiny Committee on 21 March 2011 and Lincolnshire 

HSC in April 2011 and to two Deliberative Stakeholder Events in Lincoln and Sleaford in 

May 2011.  

 

On 22 June 2011, it was announced that an independent panel of national and international 

experts, chaired by Adrian Pollitt, had been appointed to advise the JCPCT on the potential 

impact of the children’s congenital heart proposals on other services at the Royal Brompton 

Hospital. 

 

The formal public consultation closed on 1 July 2011 (except for HOSCs). An independent 

analysis of the consultation, commissioned from Ipsos MORI, was published in August 

2011. That analysis acknowledged that the impact of the proposed changes on other services 

had been raised as an issue during consultation. 

 

During August 2011, representatives of East Midlands SCG provided briefings for East 

Midlands HOSCs about responses to the public consultation and on a draft final Health 

Impact Assessment. Further briefings were held in the run-up to the JCPCT decision-making 

meeting in July 2012. 

 

In September 2011, the Safe and Sustainable Steering Group considered clinical issues 

raised during the consultation and advised the JCPCT to agree the quality standards and 

model of care as set out in the consultation document. A supplementary report in response to 

issues raised during the consultation was published by the Kennedy panel in October 2011.  

 

The Report of the Independent Panel on the Relationship of Interdependencies at the Royal 

Brompton Hospital (the “Pollitt Report”) was published on 15 September 2011. It stated 

that “… although there would be an impact on the range of activity at the RBH the panel 

has concluded that paediatric respiratory services would remain viable at the RBH site in 

the absence of an on-site PICU”.  

 

The formal consultation with HOSCs concluded on 5 October 2011. Also in that month, at 

the JCPCT’s request, the Kennedy panel published a supplementary report in response to 

issues raised during consultation. The panel clarified that University Hospital of Leicester 

NHS Trust did not meet the requirement for the co-location of core paediatric services.  

 

Page 65



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

4

The Yorkshire and Humber Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Joint HOSC) 

referred the Safe and Sustainable review of children’s congenital cardiac services to the 

Secretary of State on 14 October 2011. The referral was particularly concerned with services 

currently provided at Leeds General Infirmary and the potential effects of the proposals on 

patients and residents in Yorkshire and the Humber. 

 

On 7 November 2011, the judgement was delivered in the judicial review brought by the 

Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust. The judge, whilst rejecting a number 

of the arguments put forward, found against the JCPCT on a matter of process. An appeal 

against the judgement was lodged. 

 

Later in November 2011, the JCPCT invited the 11 centres providing children’s congenital 

heart services to submit new evidence demonstrating their compliance with the national 

quality standards relating to innovation and research. 

 

The IRP submitted its initial assessment advice on the referral by the Yorkshire and Humber 

Joint HOSC on 13 January 2012. As well as commenting on the consultation process and on 

communication and relationships between the Joint HOSC and the JCPCT, the Panel offered 

advice in relation to a number of outstanding requests for information sought by the Joint 

HOSC. The Secretary of State announced on 23 February 2012 that he had accepted the 

Panel’s advice in full.  

 

The Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea Health Environmental Health and Adult 

Social Care (HEHASC) Scrutiny Committee referred the Safe and Sustainable review of 

children’s congenital cardiac services to the Secretary of State on 27 March 2011. The 

referral was particularly concerned with services currently provided at the Royal Brompton 

Hospital and the potential effects of the proposals on patients and residents in west London 

and south east England. 

 

On 19 April 2012, the Court of Appeal announced its decision, dismissing the grounds 

raised by the Royal Brompton & Harefield NHS Foundation Trust and finding the public 

consultation to be lawful and proper. 

 

The IRP submitted its initial assessment advice on the referral by the Kensington and 

Chelsea HEHASC Scrutiny Committee 23 May 2012. The Panel offered comments on the 

JCPCT’s efforts to address concerns raised by respondents to the consultation process that 

would inform the JCPCT ahead of its forthcoming decision-making meeting. The Secretary 

of State announced on 15 June 2012 that he had accepted the Panel’s advice in full.  

 

In line with the IRP’s initial assessment advice on the referrals by Yorkshire and Humber 

Joint HOSC and by Kensington and Chelsea HEHASC Scrutiny Committee, further work 

was undertaken and completed to inform the JCPCT before its decision-making meeting. 

 

Page 66



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

5

The JCPCT held its decision-making meeting on 4 July 2012 and agreed that seven managed 

clinical networks should be established across England (and serving Wales). Each network 

would be led by a surgical centre - based in the Freeman Hospital Newcastle (north), Alder 

Hey Children’s Hospital Liverpool (north west and north Wales), Birmingham Children’s 

Hospital (midlands), Bristol Royal Hospital for Children (south west and south Wales), 

Southampton General Hospital (south central) and Great Ormond Street Hospital for 

Children and Evelina Children’s Hospital (London, East Anglia and the south east). 

 

On 13 July 2012, the Secretary of State for Health, having accepted the advice of the 

Advisory Group for National Specialised Services, designated Birmingham Children’s 

Hospital as a nationally commissioned provider of ExtraCorporeal Membrane Oxygenation 

(ECMO) services for children with respiratory failure – in place of the existing unit at 

Glenfield Hospital, Leicester.  

 

The Lincolnshire HSC referred the Safe and Sustainable review of children’s congenital 

cardiac services to the Secretary of State on 27 July 2012. The referral was particularly 

concerned with services currently provided at Glenfield Hospital, Leicester and the potential 

effects of the proposals on patients and residents in Lincolnshire.  

 

The LLR Scrutiny Committee referred the Safe and Sustainable review of children’s 

congenital cardiac services to the Secretary of State on 7 September 2012. The referral was 

particularly concerned with services currently provided at Glenfield Hospital, Leicester and 

the potential effects of the proposals on patients and residents in Leicester, Leicestershire 

and Rutland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basis for referral 

The referral letter of 27 July 2012 from Cllr Talbot, Chair of the Lincolnshire HSC states 

that: 

 

“This referral is made pursuant to Regulation 4(7) of the Local Authority (Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002, which means that the 

proposal is not in the interests of the health service in Lincolnshire. 

 

The referral is made with the following supporting grounds:- 

 

(1) the impact of the closure of the Glenfield Children’s Heart Surgery Unit on 

Lincolnshire families, in terms of clinical safety and accessibility; 

(2) the impact of the removal of the ExtraCorporeal Membrane Oxygenation equipment 

from Glenfield to the Birmingham Children’s Hospital; 

Page 67



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

6

(3) the decision making process of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts.” 

 

The documentation supplied with the referral letter of 7 September 2012 from Michael 

Cooke, Chairman and Ruth Camomile, Vice Chairman of the LLR Scrutiny Committee 

states that: 

 

“This referral is made pursuant to regulation 4(7) of the Local Authority (Overview and 

Scrutiny Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002. 

 

The LLR Scrutiny Committee supports the principles of the Safe and Sustainable Review but 

is concerned at the outcome, believing that the decision of the JCPCT is not in the best 

interest of the local health service and the population it serves. The grounds for challenge 

are summarised below. 

 

(a) The JCPCT prediction of demand and capacity at Birmingham Children’s Hospital; 

(b) The impact of moving ECMO services and increased mortality; 

(c) Impact on paediatric intensive care capacity in the Midlands 

(d) Impact on medical research at University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust and 

Leicester University; 

(e) Accessibility of services; 

(f) The decision-making process of the JCPCT.” 

 

IRP view 

With regard to the referrals by the Lincolnshire HSC and LLR Scrutiny Committee, the 

Panel notes that:  

• The proposals have aroused considerable national interest 

• These are the third and fourth referrals to date relating to the Safe and Sustainable 

proposals for children’s congenital cardiac services 

• It is understood that further referrals are anticipated 

• Common themes have been raised in the referrals so far received, including 

Ø  the impact on patients and residents in the localities concerned, notably travel times 

and use of post code analysis to assess the likely impact 

Ø  the impact on other services provided by the hospitals affected in those localities, 

including possible impact on staff retention 

Ø  the consultation and decision-making process adopted by the JCPCT 

Ø  the impact on medical research 

 

Conclusion 

The IRP offers its advice on a case-by-case basis taking account of the specific 

circumstances and issues of each referral.  

 

The Safe and Sustainable proposals for children’s congenital heart services have already 

been the subject of two referrals to the Secretary of State for Health. The IRP provided 

initial assessment advice on referrals from the Yorkshire and Humber Joint HOSC on 13 

Page 68



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

7

January 2012 and from the Kensington and Chelsea Health HEHASC Scrutiny Committee 

on 23 May 2012. Both referrals were made prior to final decisions being made by the 

JCPCT. In both cases, the Panel offered advice designed to enable the consultation process 

to be completed prior to the JCPCT’s decision-making meeting to be held on 4 July 2012. 

 

In addition to the referrals referenced above, and these referrals from the Lincolnshire HSC 

and the LLR Scrutiny Committee, the Panel is aware that the Yorkshire and Humber Joint 

HOSC has written to the Secretary of State advising of its intention to refer the proposals 

again following the JCPCT’s decision of 4 July 2012. The Panel has been advised that 

referrals from other HOSCs are also expected. 

 

Further, the Panel understands that a letter before action has been issued to the JCPCT on 

behalf of a Leeds based charity prior to making an application for a judicial review of the 

JCPCT’s decision of 4 July 2012. The JCPCT’s concern, that further legal proceedings may 

lead to delay in making changes to services, is noted. 

 

Clearly, these developments mean that there is a high risk of uncertainty for the services 

concerned. Alongside the considerable public interest in this, the first national consultation 

to have been conducted since the introduction of health scrutiny by local authorities, the IRP 

considers that the issues raised merit further consideration. The Panel believes that a full 

review would be appropriate and stands ready to undertake such a review if requested.  

 

 

 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lord Ribeiro CBE 

IRP Chairman 

Page 69



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

8

APPENDIX ONE 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS RECEIVED 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire 

1 Letter of referral from Cllr Talbot, Chair, Health Scrutiny Committee for 

Lincolnshire to Secretary of State for Health, 27 July 2012 

Attachment: 

2 Document in support of submission produced by Health Scrutiny Committee for 

Lincolnshire 

 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee 

1 Letter of referral from Cllr Cooke, Chairman, and Cllr Camomile, Vice-Chairman, 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny 

Committee to Secretary of State for Health, 7 September 2012 

Attachment: 

2 Document setting out evidence gathered by LLR Scrutiny Committee in support of 

referral to the Secretary of State for Health, with supporting appendices: 

3 Projected demand 

4 Capacity at Birmingham Children’s Hospital 

5 Effect of the Review on ECMO Provision 

6 Impact on Paediatric Care Services 

7 Evidence provided by the University of Leicester 

8 purpose and Scope of the Review 

9 Initial letter to the Secretary of State for Health 

10 Minutes of Leicester City Council’s Health and Community Involvement Scrutiny 

Commission, 26 July 2012 

11 Minutes of Leicester City Council meeting, 28 June 2012 

12 Minutes of Leicestershire County Council Cabinet meeting, 23 July 2012 

13 Report to the University Hospitals of Leicester Trust Board, 26 July 2012 

14 Leicester LINk email to east Midlands MPs and LINk briefing paper 

15 Report of Dr Nichani, Consultant paediatric Intensivist, University Hospitals of 

Leicester 

16 Report to the University Hospitals of Leicester Trust Board, 30 August 2012 

17 Responses of east midlands health and overview scrutiny committees 

18 Minutes of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Health Overview Scrutiny 

Committee, 4 September 2012 

 

National Specialised Commissioning Team  

1 Lincolnshire HSC specific IRP template for providing initial assessment information 

Links and attachments: 

2 Referral from the Lincolnshire OSC to the Secretary of State for Health, 27 July 

2012 

3 Response to the consultation from the Lincolnshire OSC (via response form) 

Page 70



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

9

 Response form (for reference) 

4 Letter from Cllr Mrs Christine Talbot, Chair of the Health Scrutiny Committee for 

Lincolnshire, 24 May 2012 

5 Letter from Dr Kevin Harris, Medical Director, University Hospitals of Leicester 

NHS Trust to Jo Sheehan, Deputy Director, NSCT, 26 October 2012 

6 Letter from Mr Giles Peek, Director, Paediatric and Adult ECMO programme, 

Glenfield Hospital, to Teresa Moss, Director, NSCT, 11 June 2012 

7 Ipsos MORI report of the public consultation, August 2011 

8 Safe and Sustainable Steering Group – membership, 2010 

9 Decision Making Business Case, Appendix LL – Safe and Sustainable Capacity 

Review, May 2012 

10 NSCT’s statement on children’s respiratory ECMO 

11 Statement: ECMO and children’s congenital heart services, 10 July 2012 

 

12 Safe and Sustainable general IRP template for providing initial assessment 

information 

Links and attachments: 

13 Report of the Public Inquiry into children’s heart surgery at the Bristol Royal 

infirmary 1984-1995: Learning from Bristol, July 2001 

14 The relation between Volume and Outcome in Paediatric Cardiac Surgery. A 

Literature Review for the National Specialised Commissioning Group. Henrietta 

Ewart, Consultant in Public Health Medicine, PHRU, Oxford, September 2009 

15 Children’s Heart Surgery Centres in England: Comments on Draft Service 

Specification Standards (Comments received up to 17 February 2010), February 

2010 

16 Letter from Cllr Christopher Buckmaster, Chair, Health Scrutiny Committee, the 

Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea, to Jeremy Glyde, Programme Director, 

Safe and Sustainable, 8 September 2010 

17 Children’s Heart Surgery in England – A Need for Change, April 2011 

18 Papers from the JCPCT meeting in public (launch of the consultation), 16 February 

2011 

19 Pre-consultation Business Case, February 2011 

20 Consultation document, February 2011 

21 Better care for your heart – a summary (consultation document for young people), 

March-July 2011 

22 Consultation document and questionnaire in Welsh, March-July 2011 

23 Consultation document and questionnaire in minority languages 

24 Consultation document – improving children’s congenital heart services in London, 

March-July 2011 

25 National Clinical Advisory Team (NCAT) report, September 2010 

26 OGC Gateway Report, September 2010 

27 NHS London’s approval to launch consultation, 8 February 2011 

28 NHS London’s assurance report, 8 February 2011 

29 Health Impact Assessment – Key Emerging Findings, 21 June 2011 

Page 71



Appendix 3 

 

IRP 

 

Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

Tel: 020 7389 8045/6 

E Mail: info@irpanel.org.uk Website: www.irpanel.org.uk 
 

 

10

30 Health Impact Assessment – draft final report (interim report), 5 August 2011 

31 Ipsos MORI – Safe and Sustainable Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services 

in England: Report of the public consultation, 24 August 2011 

32 Report of the Independent Panel on the relationship of interdependencies at the Royal 

Brompton Hospital (“Pollitt Report”), 15 September 2011 

33 Report from Sir Ian Kennedy’s independent expert panel to the JCPCT, 17 October 

2011 

34 Testing assumptions for future patient flows and manageable clinical networks for 

Safe and Sustainable (PWC), October 2011 

35 Report to the JCPCT by Dr Patricia Hamilton CBE, Chair of the Safe and 

Sustainable Steering Group, on behalf of Steering Group members, 17 October 2011 

36 Judgement – High Court, 7 November 2011 

37 Report of Sir Ian Kennedy’s Panel in response to the additional evidence submitted 

in relation to “innovation and research”, 14 February 2012 

38 Judgement – Court of Appeal, 19 April 2012 

39 Responses from organisations to an independent report on family travel analysis, 24 

April 2012 

40  Safe and Sustainable: Implementation Plan during 2012/13 and Transfer into the 

NHS Commissioning Board for April 2013, August 2012 

41 Papers presented at the JCPCT meeting in public, 4 July 2012 

42 Transcript from the JCPCT’s decision-making meeting in public, 4 July 2012 

43 Letter from professional associations regarding the JCPCT’s decision on the future 

configuration of children’s congenital heart services 

 

Other information received 

 Information forwarded by Dr Peter Barry, Department of Child Health, Leicester 

Royal Infirmary: 

1 Document: Congenital Heart Surgery Review – The clinical case for keeping surgery 

at Glenfield Hospital, Leicester 

2 Letter to Sir Neil McKay CB, Chair Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, from 

Dr Peter Carter, Chief executive and General Secretary, Royal College of Nursing, 7 

September 2012 

3 Email from Dr W Lynch, Chairman Extracorporeal Life Support Organisation, 17 

September 2012 

4 Email from Mrs Nicky Morgan, MP for Loughborough, 18 September 2012 

 

Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Appendix 3 

 

Terms of reference 

 

With due regard to the general terms of reference as agreed between DH and 

the IRP, the Panel is to advise by 28 February 2013:  

 

a. whether it is of the opinion that the proposals for change under the 

“Safe and Sustainable Review of Children’s Congenital Heart 

Services” will enable the provision of safe, sustainable and accessible 

services and if not, why not 

 

b. on any other observations the Panel may wish to make in relation to 

the changes; and 

 

c. on how to proceed in light of a. and b. above and taking account of the 

issues raised by the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire and 

by the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Joint Health and 

Overview Scrutiny Committee - subject to the proviso at d. below 

 

d. The decision of the Secretary of State taken regarding the designation 

of Birmingham Children's Hospital as a nationally commissioned 

provider of the Extra Corporeal Membrane Oxygenation service for 

children with respiratory failure - in place of the existing unit at 

Glenfield Hospital, Leicester - should not form part of the review as 

this decision was not taken by the Joint Committee of Primary Care 

Trusts. 

 

This deadline for this review is subject to any further instruction the 

Secretary of State may need to issue in relation to timing in the light of the 

judicial review challenge brought against the Joint Committee of Primary 

Care Trusts 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 
 

IRP 
      www.irpanel.org.uk  

Press release  
6th November 2012  
 
 

IRP undertaking independent health review  
 

The Independent Reconfiguration Panel (IRP), the independent expert on NHS service 

change, has started a full review to consider whether the Safe and Sustainable 

proposals for children’s congenital heart services will enable the provision of safe, 

sustainable and accessible services.   

 

The IRP provided initial assessment advice in September 2012 following two referrals 

from the Health Scrutiny Committee for Lincolnshire, and from the Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland Joint Health and Overview Scrutiny Committee. The Health 

Secretary, Rt Hon Jeremy Hunt MP, accepted the IRP’s advice that a full review should 

be undertaken.    

 

Lord Ribeiro, Chairman of the IRP, said: “The Panel’s key focus throughout the review 

will be children with congenital heart disease and the quality of care they need to 

receive. During the course of the review we will gather evidence from a range of people 

and listen to all interested parties to ensure that the recommendations we make are in 

the best interests of the children - and their families - across England that need to access 

these services.” 

 

As part of the review process the IRP will visit the hospitals currently providing children’s 

congenital heart surgery to see the facilities and meet patients, clinicians and other staff.  

Over the coming weeks, Health and Overview Scrutiny Committees and MPs in England 

and Wales will be invited to share their views and any new evidence they may have with 

the IRP.  IRP panel members will also hold a series of meetings to hear directly from a 

range of interested parties, including local authority representatives and interest groups.   

 

The IRP strives to ensure that its reviews are open and accountable to the people using 

the services that are affected by this review. Anyone wishing to share their views or 

provide new evidence as part of this review can contact the IRP in the following ways:  

• By email: info@irpanel.org.uk 

• In writing: IRP, 6th Floor, 157-197 Buckingham Palace Road, London SW1W 9SP 

• By leaving a voice message on: 020 7389 8046  

Page 77



 

The IRP is not able to respond to individual emails, letters or phone calls, however all 

information and views will be taken into account by the IRP and contributors will be 

acknowledged in the final report. 

 

The IRP will make recommendations to the Health Secretary by 28 February 2013 in 

relation to the changes (subject to any changes of date that may be made). The final 

decision on changes to services will be made by the Health Secretary. 

 
ENDS 

 

For further information, contact the IRP press office on 020 7478 7835 or email 

press@irpanel.org.uk 

 
Notes to editors: 
 

1. The IRP will publish the findings of this review on the website - 

www.irpanel.org.uk - once they have been considered by the Health Secretary 

2. The IRP was set up in 2003 to provide advice to the Secretary of State for Health 

on contested proposals for health service change in England 

3. The Local Authority (Overview and Scrutiny Committees Health Scrutiny 

Functions) Regulations 2002 require NHS organisations to consult their Health 

Overview and Scrutiny Committees (OSCs) on any proposals for substantial 

changes to local health services.  If a Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 

not satisfied that either a thorough consultation process has taken place or that 

the proposal meets the needs of the local community, it may refer the proposals 

to the Secretary of State for Health under regulation 4(7) of the Local Authority 

(Overview and Scrutiny Committee Health Scrutiny Functions) Regulations 2002 

4. IRP panel members have wide ranging expertise in clinical healthcare, NHS 

management, public and patient involvement and handling and delivering 

successful changes in the NHS 

5. Further information, including details of all panel members, is available from 

www.irpanel.org.uk  

 

Page 78



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber) 

Date: 16 November 2012 

Subject:  Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England: Referral to the 
Secretary of State for Health – draft report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

 

Summary of main issues  
 
1. Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England were 

launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011, running until 1 July 2011. 
 
2. At its meeting on 4 October 2011,  the Joint HOSC agreed its consultation response 

and outline report.  The Joint HOSC submitted its formal response to the consultation 
on 5 October 2011 and subsequently issued a formal report to the Joint Committee of 
Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) – as the appropriate decision-making body – on 10 
October 2011. 

 
3. At its meeting on 4 July 2012, the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 

implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the following 
surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
4. A formal response to the Joint HOSC’s report was received on 18 July 2012 and 

considered at the Joint HOSC’s previous meeting on 24 July 2012. 
 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 8

Page 79



 

 

5. At the same meeting (24 July 2012) the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 
and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard from 
a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
6. At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(a) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(b) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of the 

Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the Humber), a 
draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of State for Health 

 
7. The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above. 
 
Recommendations 
 
8. That the Joint HOSC: 

a. Considers the details presented in draft report and identifies any necessary 
amendments; and, 

b. Subject to any amendments, agree the report for submission to the Secretary of 
State for Health. 

 

Page 80



 

 

1.0  Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health of the decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care 
Trusts (JCPCT)  decision in relation to the review of Children’s Congenital Heart 
Services in England and the reconfiguration of designated surgical centres. 

 
2.0  Background information 
 
2.1 Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England 

were launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011, running until 1 July 2011 
 
2.2 At its meeting on 4 October 2011,  the Joint HOSC agreed its consultation response 

and outline report.  The Joint HOSC submitted its formal response to the 
consultation on 5 October 2011 and subsequently issued a formal report to the Joint 
Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT) – as the appropriate decision-making 
body – on 10 October 2011. 

 
2.3 A formal response to the Joint HOSC’s report was received on 18 July 2012 and 

considered at the Joint HOSC’s previous meeting on 24 July 2012. 
 
2.4 The Joint HOSCs report highlighted a number of areas that it believed required 

further and more detailed consideration, while the overall view of the Joint HOSC 
was that any future service model that did not include a designated children’s 
cardiac surgical centre at Leeds would have a disproportionately negative impact on 
the children and families across Yorkshire and the Humber. This view, as detailed in 
the full report, was specifically based on the evidence considered in relation to: 

 

• Co-location of services; 

• Caseloads; 

• Population density; 

• Vulnerable groups; 

• Travel and access to services; 

• Costs to the NHS 

• The impact on children, families and friends; 

• Established congenital cardiac networks; 

• Adults with congenital cardiac disease;    

• Views of the people across Yorkshire and the Humber 
 
2.5 In October 2011, the Joint HOSC referred this matter to the Secretary of State for 

Health on the basis of inadequate consultation.  The outcome of this referral was 
that, while the consultation arrangements overall were deemed satisfactory, there 
was agreement that some of the information requested by the Joint HOSC (namely 
the PwC report that tested the assumed patient travel flows and clinical networks 
under each of the four options presented for public consultation) should have been 
made available ahead of the consultation deadline. 

 
2.6 Additional comments on the findings of the PwC report that tested the assumed 

patient travel flows and clinical networks under each of the four options presented 
for public consultation were issued to the JCPCT at the end of April 2012. 

 

Page 81



 

 

2.7 At its meeting on 4 July 2012, the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 
implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the 
following surgical centres: 

 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
3.0  Main issues 

3.1 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 
and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard 
from a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
3.2 At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(a) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(b) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of 

the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber), a draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health 

 
3.3 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above. 
 
4.0  Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report.   

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 When initially considering the potential impact of the proposed changes during the 
consultation period, the Joint HOSC considered a regional Health Impact 
Assessment (HIA) produced by the Yorkshire and Humber Specialised 
Commissioning Group (SCG) and a nationally commissioned Interim HIA report, 
produced by Mott McDonald. 

Page 82



 

 

 
4.2.2 Both reports identified potential negative impacts associated with three of the 

proposed options put forward for consultation.  In particular, the HIA interim report  
produced by Mott McDonald identified the following as vulnerable groups: 

 

• Children (under 16s)* who are the primary recipient of the services under review 
and, therefore, most sensitive to service changes; 

• People who experience socio-economic deprivation; 

• People from Asian ethnic groups, particularly those with an Indian, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi and other Indian subcontinent heritage; 

• Mothers who smoke during pregnancy; and 

• Mothers who are obese during pregnancy; 
 

These are defined as vulnerable groups because they are more likely to need the 
services under review and, are most likely to experience disproportionate impacts. 

 
4.2.3 A finalised Health Impact Assessment report has been completed (dated June 

2012) and was referenced as an appendix to the Decision-Making Business Case.  
A summary analysis of the impacts of the different configurations of surgical centres 
considered by the JCPCT was included within the Decision-Making Business Case 
document itself   This provided high level analysis (i.e. on a national level) of the 
total number of patients, including those living within vulnerable postcode districts,  
who would experience significant travel impacts under the various configuration 
models considered.  A regional breakdown of the overall numbers was not provided 
in the Decision-Making Business Case, however maps of the country identifying the 
vulnerable postcode districts experiencing significant travel time impacts are 
included in the final HIA report (June 2012) produced by Mott MacDonald. 

 
4.2.4 Prior to finalising its initial report in October 2011, the Joint HOSC requested a 

detailed breakdown of information on the likely impacts on identified vulnerable 
groups across Yorkshire and the Humber (as referred to in the Health Impact 
Assessment (interim report)).  This information has not been provided. 

 
4.3  Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

4.4  Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 Prior to completing its report in October 2011, the Joint HOSC was advised that the 
proposed model of care for the delivery of children’s congenital cardiac services 
was likely to result in an increased level of expenditure.  The Joint HOSC was also 
specifically advised of a likely significant increase in costs associated with the 
transport and retrieval service in Yorkshire and the Humber.   

4.4.2 Financial analysis details considered by the JCPCT were presented in Chapter 14 
of the Decision-Making Business Case. 

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

 

Page 83



 

 

4.6  Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

5.0  Conclusions 

5.1 At its meeting on 4 July 2012  , the JCPCT agreed consultation Option B for 
implementation and the designation of congenital heart networks led by the 
following surgical centres: 

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Alder Hey Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust  

• Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

• University Hospitals of Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 

• Southampton University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

• Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Foundation Trust 

• Guy’s and St. Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust 
 
5.2 At its meeting on 24 July 2012, the Joint HOSC considered the JCPCT’s decision 

and the associated Decision-Making Business Case.  The Joint HOSC also heard 
from a range of interested parties / stakeholders, including: 

 

• The JCPCT and supporting secretariat; 

• Parent representatives; 

• The Children’s Heart Surgery Fund; 

• Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust  

• Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing (Leeds City Council) 

• Stuart Andrew (MP) 
 
5.3 At that meeting, the Joint HOSC made the following resolutions: 
 

(c) That the 4 July 2012 decision of the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts, 
regarding the future reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Cardiac Surgical 
Centres, and associated network configuration, be referred to the Secretary of 
State for Health for consideration, on the basis of the decision not being in the 
interest of the local NHS. 

 
(d) That, reflecting the evidence considered and the issues raised by members of 

the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber), a draft report be prepared to support the referral to the Secretary of 
State for Health 

 
5.4 The purpose of this report is to present the draft report to support the referral to the 

Secretary of State for Health detailed above 

6.0  Recommendations 

6.1 That the Joint HOSC: 
 

(a) Considers the details presented in draft report and identifies any necessary 
amendments; and, 

(b) Subject to any amendments, agree the report for submission to the Secretary 
of State for Health 

 

Page 84



 

 

7.0  Background documents1   

None used 

 

 

                                            
1
  The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not 
include published works. 

 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meetings
	Minutes 19th December 2011
	Minutes 4th October 2011
	Minutes 29th September 2011
	Minutes 22nd September 2011

	7 Review of Children's Congenital Heart Services in England: Implementation
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3a
	Appendix 3b
	Appendix 3c
	Appendix 3d

	8 Review of Children's Congenital Heart Services in England: Referral to the Secretary of State for Health - draft report

